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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
GLOSSARY
The following terms are frequently used in the w@ithis report and have the meanings indicatedvbel

“Used Core” — An alternator or starter which hasesed in the operation of a vehicle. Generdily,Used Core is an original equipment
(“OE") alternator or starter installed by the vdaimanufacturer and subsequently removed for reptent. Used Cores contain salvageable
parts which are an important raw material in theapsufacturing process. We obtain most Used Corgsdoiding credits to our customers for
Used Cores returned to us under our core exchamgegm. Our customers receive these Used Coresdamsumers who deliver a Used Core
to obtain credit from our customers upon the pusela a newly remanufactured alternator or stavtéren sufficient Used Cores cannot be
obtained from our customers, we will purchase USetks from core brokers, who are in the businessiging and selling Used Cores. The
Used Cores purchased from core brokers or retumad by our customers under the core exchangegmand which have been physically
received by us, are part of our raw material orkwiorprocess inventory included in long-term coreentory.

“Remanufactured Core” — The Used Core underlyingléernator or starter that has gone through thmreifacturing process and through
that process has become part of a newly remanuéatalternator or starter. The remanufacturing @edakes a Used Core, breaks it down
into its component parts, replaces those comporteatTannot be reused and reassembles the sabrageamponents of the Used Core and
additional new components into a remanufacturestradtor or starter. Remanufactured Cores are irdlird our on-hand finished goods
inventory and in the remanufactured finished goatipct held for sale at customer locations. Usek€ceturned by consumers to our
customers but not yet returned to us continue tddmsified as Remanufactured Cores until we phjlgiceceive these Used Cores. All
Remanufactured Cores are included in our long-teora inventory or in our long-term core inventogpdsit.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all refeesnia this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “the Comypa “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidiaxid his Form 1-K may contain forwardeoking statements within the meaning of the Pe'
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such mdviooking statements involve risks and uncertamtOur actual results may differ
significantly from the results discussed in anyvard-looking statements. Discussions containindidooward-looking statements may be
found in the material set forth und“ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdficial Condition and Results of Operations,” as
well as within this Form 10-K generally.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, pretatements and other information with the Seiasriand Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Our SEC filings are available free of charge toghblic over the Internet at the SEC’s websitenatv.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also
available free of charge on our websitew.motorcarparts.com¥ou may also read and copy any document we fill thie SEC at its Public
Reference Room at 100 F. Street, NE, Washingta@, 20549. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-033fuftrer information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business

General

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideaitwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§®1Y”) market, which is generally
serviced by the large retail chain outlets. Congsméno purchase parts from the DIY channel genenaditall parts into their vehicles
themselves. In most cases, this is a cheaper afteerthan having the repair performed by a prodessd installer. The second market is the
professional installer market, commonly known asdb-it-for-me (“DIFM”) market. This market is séted by the retail chains, traditional
warehouse distributors and the dealer networksefdly, the consumer in this channel is a professiparts installer.

We remanufacture alternators and starters for itrgoot domestic cars, light trucks, heavy duty,@griiral and industrial applications. These
products are distributed to both the DIY and DIFMrkets. Our products are distributed predominahtigughout the United States and
Canada. Our products are sold to the largest arts petail chains in the United States and Cariadliding Advance, AutoZone, Genuine
Parts (NAPA), O'Reilly Automotive and Pep Boys.dddition, our products are sold to various tradiilovarehouses for the professional
installers, and to major automobile manufacturerdbth their aftermarket programs and their wagraeplacement programs (“OES”). Auto
parts retail chains in total, currently accountdpproximately 35% of the North American after-nedrfor remanufactured alternators and
starters.

Demand and replacement rates for after-market rafaatured alternators and starters generally iser@dth increases in miles driven and the
age of vehicles. According to industry statistlosth the average age of vehicles on the road ales mhiiven in North America have increased
during fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009.

Historically, our business has focused on the Didfket. The DIY market has grown at an estimateel 048.2% per annum over the last ten
years. In times of recession, we believe consumrersnore apt to purchase replacement parts in faeriarket because of lower pric
compared to the DIFM market.

We have coverage for almost every alternator aadestused by any automobile light and heavy duigkt as well as most industrial and
agricultural vehicles or equipment. We have warasimstrategically located around North America aniflexico to allow us to be able to
complete distribution to almost any customer intN@merica.

While we continually seek to add business withexisting customers and to diversify our customesebave currently derive, and have
historically derived, a substantial portion of safes from a small number of large customers. @Quigtal 2010, sales to our four largest
customers constituted approximately 85% of oursaéts. To mitigate the risk associated with thiscemtration of sales, we have increasingly
sought to enter into longer-term customer agreesn@ith our major customers. These longer-term agesds typically require us to commit a
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significant amount of our working capital to buitdzentory and increase production. Such agreemititsnew customers may also require us
to incur certain changeover expenses. In additieese longer-term agreements typically include migmg and other allowances that adversely
impact near-term revenue.

To offset the pricing pressure and costs associaithdour agreements with our largest customershawee moved substantially all of our U.S.
remanufacturing operations to lower cost faciliiire$lexico and Malaysia. We expect to maintain prcttbn of remanufactured units that
require specialized service and/or rapid turnardaraur U.S. facility.

To continue our strategy to further enhance outketashare in North America, we completed the adtjoisof certain assets of Reliance
Automotive, Inc. (“Reliance”), a privately held ramufacturer of alternators and starters based $h Bexlin, Connecticut. These products are
sold under the Reliance™ brand name.

Company Products

Our total net sales is primarily derived from sadésemanufactured alternators and starters fooimngnd domestic cars and light trucks.
Alternators and starters are nelective replacement parts in all makes and manfelehicles because they are required for a velictperate
Currently, approximately 91% of our units are sfoldresale under customer private labels. The lalasmsold under our Quality-Buflt, Talor
® Xtreme®, Reliance™, and other brand names.

Our alternators and starters are produced to niestoeed original equipment manufacturer specificat We remanufacture alternators and
starters for virtually all import and domestic velbi sold in the United States and Canada. Remetotifag generally creates a supply of parts
at a lower cost to the end user than newly manufadtparts and makes available automotive partshwdnrie no longer manufactured as new.
Our remanufactured parts are sold at competitil@byer prices than most new replacement parts.

We recycle nearly all materials in keeping with fagus of positively impacting the environment. Neall parts, including metal from the
Used Cores, and corrugated packaging are recycled.

The technology and the specifications for the comemts used in our products, particularly alterrgtbave become more advanced in resp
to the installation in vehicles of an increasingmer of electrical components such as navigatistesys, keyless entry devices, heated rear
windows and seats, high-powered stereo systemB®idplayers. As a result of this increased eleatritiemand, alternators require more
advanced technology and higher grade componentpemahit sales prices of replacement alternatave increased accordingly. The
increasing complexity of cars and light trucks &mel number of different makes and models of thetecles have resulted in a significant
increase in the number of different alternators stadters required to service import and domestis and light trucks. In addition to the over
3,200 stock keeping units (“SKUs”) for heavy duhdaa variety of agricultural and industrial apptioas, we carry over 3,900 SKUs which
cover applications for most import and domestis@ard light trucks sold in the United States andada.

Customers: Customer Concentration

Our products are marketed throughout the UniteteStand Canada. Currently, we serve all of thesktrgetail automotive chain stores with an
aggregate of approximately 12,000 retail outleteel as a diverse group of automotive warehousgidutors and OES customers.

We are substantially dependent upon sales to ojarroastomers. During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 20@&ssto our four largest customers
constituted approximately 85%, 92% and 94%, re$gedygt of our net sales, and sales to our largestamer AutoZone, constituted 44%, 49%
and 53%, respectively, of our net sales. Any megninreduction in the level of sales to any of thesistomers, deterioration of any customer’s
financial condition or the loss of a customer cdudde a materially adverse impact upon us.
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Customer Arrangements; Impact on Working Capital

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeittsmany of our major customers. Under these agesésnwhich typically have initial
terms of at least four years, we are designatékeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedeggiries of remanufactured alternators and
starters. Because of the very competitive natuteefmarket for remanufactured starters and aftersand the limited number of customers
for these products, our customers have sought brainhed price concessions, significant marketimgwednces and more favorable delivery i
payment terms in consideration for our designagi®ma customer’s exclusive or primary supplier. €hiasentives differ from contract to
contract and can include (i) the issuance of aifipda@amount of credits against receivables in adance with a schedule set forth in the
relevant contract, (ii) support for a particulastamer’s research or marketing efforts provideé@@tcheduled basis, (iii) discounts granted in
connection with each individual shipment of prodaatd (iv) other marketing, research, store exmensi product development support. We
have also entered into agreements to purchasérceustomers’ Remanufactured Core inventory aridsoe credits to pay for that inventory
according to a schedule set forth in the agreenfém@se contracts typically require that we meetoamg standards related to fulfillment, price,
and quality. Our contracts with major customersiexat various dates through March 2019. An agree¢méh one customer grants the
customer the right to terminate the agreementatiare for any reason.

These longer-term agreements both reflect andgttien our customer relationships and business Baseincreased demand for product as a
result of entering into these longer-term agreemefien requires that we increase our inventodespunts payable and personnel. Customer
demands that we purchase their Remanufacturedi@eertory have also been a significant and an amdit strain on our available working
capital. The marketing and other allowances wecslpi grant our customers in connection with owvrgeg expanded customer relationships
adversely impact the near-term revenues, profitaldihd associated cash flows from these arrangEmeowever, we believe the investment
we make in these new or expanded customer relaijpssvill improve our overall liquidity and casto# from operations over time.

Competition

The after-market for remanufactured alternatorssaaders is highly competitive. Our most signifitaompetitors are a division of Remy
International, Inc. and BBB Industries. We also pete with several medium-sized remanufacturersadadye number of smaller regional and
specialty remanufacturers. Overseas manufactyarticularly those located in China, are increasivar operations and could become a
significant competitive force in the future.

We believe that the reputation for quality and oo®r service that a supplier enjoys are signifi€aciiors in a customer’s purchase decision.
We believe that these factors favor our companychvprovides quality replacement automotive producpid and reliable delivery
capabilities as well as promotional support. Wedvel that our ability to provide efficient delivedystinguishes us from many of our
competitors and provides a competitive advantagee Rnd payment terms are also very important atitiye factors.

For the most part, our products have not been fEteror do we believe that our products are pabéataVe seek to protect our proprietary
processes and other information by relying on tisetret laws and non-disclosure and confidentialiyeements with certain of our employees
and other persons who have access to that infasmati

Company Operations

Production ProcessOur remanufacturing process begins with the readipsed alternators and starters, commonly knawiaed Cores”,
from our customers or core brokers. The Used Caregvaluated for inventory control purposes aed #orted by part number. Each Used
Core is completely disassembled into its fundamemtaponents. The components are cleaned in a gsdbat employs customized equipn
and cleaning materials in accordance with the requspecifications of the particular component.ddinponents known to be subject to major
wear and those components determined not to balskuer repairable are replaced by new componBblots-salvageable components of the
Used Core are sold as scrap.
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After the cleaning process is complete, the salabalgecomponents of the Used Core are inspecteteatet as prescribed by our ISO TS
16949 approved quality control program, which ipliemented throughout the production process. ISQE®!9 is an internationally
recognized, world class, automotive quality systeipon passage of all tests, which are monitoreddsignated quality control personnel, all
the component parts are assembled in a work delkifinished product. Inspection and testing aredacted at multiple stages of the
remanufacturing process, and each finished prdducspected and tested on equipment designedntadate performance under operating
conditions. Finished products are either storeslinwarehouse facility or packaged for immediatprsient. To maximize remanufacturing
efficiency, we store component parts ready for msdye in our warehousing facilities. Our manageniafdarmation systems, including
hardware and software, facilitate the remanufactuprocess from Used Cores to finished products.

Our remanufacturing processes combine product iegnivith similar configurations into dedicated fagtwork cells. This remanufacturing
process, known as “lean manufacturing”, replacedhtiore traditional assembly line approach we hagipusly utilized and eliminated a large
number of inventory moves and the need to trackntery movement through the remanufacturing procesis lean manufacturing process is
used at all of our production facilities. Becauséhts “lean manufacturing” approach, we signifidtgmeduced the time it takes to produce a
finished product. We continue to explore opportiesifor improving efficiencies in our remanufactgriprocess.

Offshore Remanufacturing. The majority of our remanufacturing operations aack sorting functions are now conducted at oduiifies in
Mexico and Malaysia. We also operate a shippingrandiving warehouse and testing facility in Sing@p During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008,
our foreign operations produced approximately 99886 and 91%, respectively, of our total unit prdere

Used Cores and Other Raw MaterialsThe majority of our Used Cores are obtained frost@mers using our core exchange program. The
core exchange program consists of the followingste

. Our customers purchase from us a remanufacturedaubé sold to their consumt

. Our customers offer their consumers a credit tdharge their used unit (Used Core) at the time ¢dmsamer purchases
remanufactured uni

. We, in turn, offer our customers a credit to seadhe&se Used Cores. The credit reduces our accmasivable

Our customers are not obligated to send us alUded Cores exchanged by their consumers. We hai@ibally purchased approximately
15% to 20% of our Used Cores in the open marken ftore brokers who specialize in buying and sellisgd Cores. During fiscal 2010, we
purchased approximately 19% of our Used Cores frora brokers. Although the open market is not mary source of Used Cores, it is a
critical source for meeting our raw material densandot all Used Cores are reusable. Remanufactaongumes, on average, more than one
Used Core for each remanufactured unit producetthofigh the yield rates depend upon both the proahattcustomer specifications, our
overall average yield rates are about 83%. We beatd 20 Used Cores to provide sufficient salvafgeabmponents to complete 100
remanufactured products.

The price of a finished product sold to our custmsig generally comprised of an amount for remagtufing (“unit value”) and an amount
separately invoiced for the Remanufactured Corlidted in the product (“Remanufactured Core chargefie Remanufactured Core charge is
equal to the credit we offer to induce the custotoerse our core exchange program and send badksi Cores to us. In accordance with
net-of-core-value revenue recognition policy, & time a sale is recorded, we only recognize asé the unit value of the finished product.
We also record as long-term core inventory the cbRemanufactured Cores included in the finishedds that are shipped to customers and
that we expect to be sent back to us as part afdheexchange program. During fiscal 2010, appnakély 96% of the Remanufactured Cores
we shipped as part of finished goods were replagesimilar Used Cores sent back to us under o egchange program, resulting in the
issuance of credits equal to the related RemanurfsdtCore value.

Other materials and components used in remanufagtare purchased in the open market. During fi264l0, 2009 and 2008, our main
supplier provided approximately 29%, 25% and 208épectively, of our raw materials
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purchased, and we rely on that supplier’s abibtptovide us with raw materials in a timely andtaféective manner; however, that supplier is
not our sole supplier of raw materials. No otheyier provided more than 10% of our raw materietas during these periods.

The ability to obtain Used Cores, materials and poments of the types and quantities we need is\@akto our ability to meet demand.

Return Rights. Under our customer agreements and general indpstgfice, our customers are allowed stock adjustsnghen their
inventory of certain product lines exceeds the ii@gy necessary to support sales to end-user carsu@ustomers have various contractual
rights for stock adjustments which range from 8%-of total units sold. In some instances, we aloligher level of returns in connection v
a significant update order. In addition, we allawstomers to return goods to us that their end-cm@sumers have returned to them. This
general right of return is allowed regardless otthler the returned item is defective. We seeknit the aggregate of stock adjustment and
other customer returns to less than 20% of unéiss@tock adjustment returns do not occur at aeygiptime during the year.

As is standard in the industry, we only acceptrregdrom on-going customers. If a customer ceasagybusiness with us, we have no further
obligation to accept additional product returnsrfrthat customer. Similarly, we accept product mretuand grant appropriate credits from new
customers from the time the new customer relatipnishestablished. This obligation to accept resurom new customers does not result in
decreased liquidity or increased expenses sincenlyeaccept one returned product for each unit solthe new customer. In each case, the
return must be received by us in the original bbthe unit sold.

We provide for the anticipated returns of inventbyyreducing revenue and cost of sales for theuatite of goods sold based on a historical
return analysis and information obtained from comtos about current stock levels and anticipateckstdjustment returns.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution. We have one of the widest varieties of alternatat starter lines available to the market, and wekata
and distribute our products throughout the Uniteate€® and Canada. Our products for the automatid chain market are primarily sold
under our customers’ private labels. Since fis€@8l& we have expanded our sales efforts beyondraitee retail chains to include warehouse
distribution centers serving professional install@ur products are also sold under our own QuBlitijt ®, Talon®, Xtreme®, Reliance™,

and other brand names. We ship our products fraititfas in Torrance, California, and Tijuana, Megj and from fee warehouse facilities in
Edison, New Jersey and Springfield, Oregon.

We publish, for print and electronic distributi@ng¢atalog with part numbers and applications foradternators and starters along with a
detailed technical glossary and informational dasgh We believe that we maintain one of the madsthsive catalog and product identification
systems available to the market.

Employees.As of March 31, 2010, we had 247 employees in thitedd States, as compared to 256 at March 31, Zd0tantially all of whoi
were located in Torrance, California. Of our U.8séd employees, 98 are administrative personnehich 21 are sales personnel. In addition,
at March 31, 2010, we had 320 employees in Singapod Malaysia, as compared to 325 employees athVv&dr, 2009, and 1,195 employees
at our facility located in Mexico, as compared {54 employees at March 31, 2009. A union reprasahhourly employees at our Mexico
facility. All other employees, including our empbss in Torrance, California, are non-union. We m®rsour relations with our employees to
be satisfactory.

Seasonality of Business

Due to their nature and design, as well as thadiwfitechnology, alternators and starters traulitily have failed when operating in extreme
conditions. During the summer months, when the txatpre typically increases over a sustained peridiine, alternators were more likely to
fail. Similarly, during winter months when extrero@ld conditions are experienced over a sustaingddestarters were more likely to fail.
This seasonality impact has been diminished byntipeovement in the quality of alternators and starand does not currently have a material
impact on our net sales.
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Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state aral laws and regulations governing, among othegsi emissions to air, discharge to waters,
and the generation, handling, storage, transpontatieatment and disposal of waste and other rattewe believe that our businesses,
operations and facilities have been and are bgiegated in compliance in all material respects &jtplicable environmental and health and
safety laws and regulations, many of which profatesubstantial fines and criminal sanctions farlations. Potentially significant
expenditures, however, could be required in ordeomply with evolving environmental and health aafety laws, regulations or
requirements that may be adopted or imposed ifutiiee.

Evaluation of Strategic Options

We are continuing to evaluate strategic optionsweamight pursue to enhance shareholder valuesélbeuld include an acquisition of anot
company or a sale of our company to a third pdrere is no assurance, however, that we will @nterany transaction as a result of our
efforts in this regard.

To enhance shareholder value, in March 2010, oardof Directors authorized a share repurchaserano@f up to $5,000,000 of our
outstanding common stock from time to time in tpemmarket and in private transactions at pricesndel appropriate by management. There
is no expiration date governing the period overalihive can repurchase shares under this progranrm&de no share repurchases during fiscal
2010.




Table of Contents

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

While we believe the risk factors described belosvadl the material risks currently facing our bosss, additional risks we are not presently
aware of or that we currently believe are immatkeneay also impair our business operations. Our ficial condition or results of operations
could be materially and adversely impacted by thiéses, and the trading price of our common stookld be adversely impacted by any of
these risks. In assessing these risks, you shdsddrefer to the other information included in acorporated by reference into this Form 10-K,
including our consolidated financial statements aeldted notes thereto appearing elsewhere or ipocated by reference in this Form 10-K.

Werely on a few major customersfor a significant majority of our business, and the loss of any of these customers, significant changesin
the prices, marketing allowances or other important terms provided to any of our major customers or adver se devel opments with respect to
the financial condition of any of our major customers would reduce our net income and operating results.

Our net sales are concentrated among a small nuohiege customers. During fiscal 2010, salesuofour largest customers constituted
approximately 85% of our net sales, and sales tdangest customer constituted approximately 44%uwfnet sales. Because our sales are
concentrated, and the market in which we operaterig competitive, we are under ongoing pressumn four customers to offer lower prices,
extended payment terms, increased marketing alloesgand other terms more favorable to these cussoifieese customer demands have put
continued pressure on our operating margins anfitaivdity, resulted in periodic contract renegaita to provide more favorable prices and
terms to these customers and significantly incret@se working capital needs. In addition, this ousér concentration leaves us vulnerable to
any adverse change in the financial condition gf @our major customers. The loss or significagtlothe of sales to any of our major
customers would reduce our net income and adveasfgt our operating results.

Our offshore remanufacturing and logistic activities expose us to increased political and economic risks and place a greater burden on
management to achieve quality standards.

Our overseas operations, especially our operatiomguana, Mexico, increase our exposure to pmditi criminal or economic instability in the
host countries and to currency fluctuations. Weehaoved substantially all of our remanufacturingragions to lower cost countries outside
the United States. While the remanufacturing ciosidexico are lower than those we have incurredunTorrance, California facility, we
experienced various but decreasing inefficiencéseaiated with our Mexican operations that havesesbly impacted our operating results
since fiscal 2006.

The complexity associated with the accounting for our operating results may continue to result in fluctuationsin our reported operating
results.

Because we receive most Used Cores, a criticalmafaaturing component, through the core exchanggram with our customers and we
offer marketing allowances and other incentives itihh@act revenue recognition, the accounting faraperations is more complex than for
many businesses the same size or larger. In past,yee corrected our accounting treatment to cpmvjith generally accepted accounting
principles that resulted in restatements to out fi@ancial statements. Steps taken to correcptheiously issued financial statements included
a review of authoritative accounting literature aodsultation with accounting experts at the SE€with external accountants. Upon
completion of this review, we corrected our treatimelated to accounting for core inventory ancerexe recognition.

Interruptions or delays in obtaining component parts could impair our business and adversely affect our operating results.

In our remanufacturing processes, we obtain UsadsCprimarily through the core exchange prograth wir customers, and component ¢
from third-party manufacturers. Historically, trevél of Used Core returns from customers togettir purchases from core brokers have
provided us with an adequate supply of this key poment. If there was a significant disruption ia Bupply of Used Cores, whether as a result
of increased Used Core acquisitions by existingesv competitors or otherwise, our operating adééigitvould be materially and adversely
impacted. In addition, a number of the other congmts used in the remanufacturing process are alaileom a very limited number of
suppliers. During fiscal 2010, we purchased 29%uwfraw materials from
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a single supplier. We are, as a result, vulnerebény disruption in component supply, and any rimegial disruption in this supply would
materially and adversely impact our operating itssul

Increases in the market prices of key component raw materials could negatively impact our profitability.

In light of the long-term, continuous pressure oigipg which we have experienced from our majortcoeers, we may not be able to recoup
the higher prices which raw materials, particuladyminum and copper, may command in the marketepld/e believe the impact of higher
raw material prices, which is outside our conti®initigated to some extent because we recovebstautial portion of our raw materials from
Used Cores returned to us by our customers thrthegyhore exchange program. However, we are unaldletermine what adverse impact, if
any, sustained raw material price increases mag bawur profitability.

Substantial and potentially increasing competition could reduce our market share and significantly harm our financial performance.

While we believe we are well-positioned in the nerdor remanufactured alternators and starters,niarket is very competitive. In addition,
other overseas manufacturers, particularly thosatéa in China, are increasing their operationscandd become a significant competitive
force in the future. We may not be successful cdmgegainst other companies, some of which agelathan us and have greater financial
and other resources at their disposal. Increasegbettion could put additional pressure on us tluoe prices or take other actions which may
have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Our financial results are affected by alternator and starter failure rates that are outside our control.

Our operating results are affected by alternatdrstarter failure rates. These failure rates agaited by a number of factors outside our
control, including alternator and starter desidrag have resulted in greater reliability, consunugiging fewer miles as a result of both high
gasoline prices and the slowdown in the U.S. econamd the average age of vehicles on the roagdAation in the failure rates of alternat
or starters would adversely affect our sales aofitpbility.

Our operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

We have experienced significant variations in ourwal and quarterly results of operations. Thasgdhtions have resulted from many fact
including shifts in the demand and pricing for puoducts and general economic conditions, includimgnges in prevailing interest rates. Our
gross profit percentage fluctuates due to numefatsrs, some of which are outside our control.SEhkactors include the timing and level of
marketing allowances provided to our customersedihces between the level of projected salegarticular customer and the actual sales
during the relevant period, pricing strategies,rttie of products sold during a reporting periodgctuations in the level of Used Core returns
during the period, and general market and compet@onditions.

Our bank may not waive future defaults under our credit agreement.

Over the past several years, we have violated @auof the financial and other covenants containesir bank credit agreement. To this
point, the bank has been willing to waive theseetant defaults and to do so without imposing aggiicant cost or penalty on us. If we falil
to meet the financial covenants or the other okibga set forth in our bank credit agreement inftiiare, there is no assurance that the bank
will waive any such defaults.

Our level of indebtedness and the terms of our indebtedness could adversely affect our business and liquidity position.

Our indebtedness may increase substantially froma tb time for various reasons, including fluctaasi in operating results, marketing
allowances provided to customers, capital expereitand possible acquisitions. Our indebtednedsl coaterially affect our business because
() a portion of our cash flow must be used to gerdebt rather than finance our operations, {(inay eventually impair our ability to obtain
financing in the future, and (iii) it may reducerdiexibility to respond to changes in business andnomic conditions or take advantage of
business opportunities that may arise.
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Our largest shareholder hasthe ability to influence all matters requiring the approval of our Board of Directors and our shareholders.

As of June 8, 2010, Mel Marks, our founder and mend our Board of Directors, beneficially owned3% of our outstanding common stc
As a result of his holdings, Mel Marks has theigbtb exercise substantial influence over us aisdriterests may conflict with the interests of
other shareholders.

Our stock price may be volatile and could decline substantially.

Our stock price may decline substantially as alteduhe volatile nature of the stock market ariden factors beyond our control. The stock
market has, from time to time, experienced extrene and volume fluctuations. Many factors mayseathe market price for our common
stock to decline, including (i) our operating resudailing to meet the expectations of securitiealysts or investors in any quarter,

(i) downward revisions in securities analystsimsttes, (iii) market perceptions concerning ouafatearnings prospects, (iv) public sales of a
substantial number of shares of our common stauk(@) adverse changes in general market conditoegonomic trends.

Our failure to maintain effective internal controlsin accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could have a material
adverse effect on our business and the price of our common stock.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“3a¥quires our management to assess the effeesgeof our internal control over
financial reporting at the end of each fiscal yaad certify whether or not internal control overafincial reporting is effective. Our independent
accountants are also required to express an opivitbrrespect to the effectiveness of our integmitrols. We expect our SOX compliance
work will continue to require significant commitntesf management time and the incurrence of sigaifigeneral and administrative expen

Unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect us.

We are exposed to market risk from material moveaminforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of odersive operations in Mexico, our primary riskatek to changes in the rates between the
U.S. dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate thigency risk, we enter into forward foreign excgparontracts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. The extent to which we use forwardifin exchange contracts is periodically reviewelijht of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipagegiirements. The use of derivative financial istents allows us to reduce our exposure to
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by changes
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreremulgdion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. These contracts expire
in a year or less. Any change in the fair valuéoogign exchange contracts is accounted for ag@ease or decrease to general and
administrative expenses in current period earnings.

We may continue to make strategic acquisitions of other companies or businesses and these acquisitions introduce significant risks and
uncertainties, including risks related to integrating the acquired businesses and achieving benefits from the acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggrafvth opportunities, we have made, and may caatto make, strategic acquisitions that
involve significant risks and uncertainties. Thasks and uncertainties include: (i) the difficultyintegrating newly-acquired businesses and
operations in an efficient and effective mannaéy tiie challenges in achieving strategic objectiwest savings and other benefits from
acquisitions, (iii) the potential loss of key emy#es of the acquired businesses, (iv) the riskwerting the attention of senior management
from our operations, (v) risks associated withgnéing financial reporting and internal controsms, (vi) difficulties in expanding
information technology systems and other businessgsses to accommodate the acquired businesse@jiafuture impairments of goodwill
of an acquired business.
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Deteriorating conditionsin the global credit markets and macroeconomic factors could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

In the past two fiscal years, significant deteriimrain the financial condition of financial insitions has resulted in a severe loss of liquidity
and availability in global credit markets and iglér short-term borrowing costs, and more stringentowing terms. Recessionary conditions
in the global economy threaten to cause furthérteiging of the credit markets, more stringent lagditandards and terms, and higher volai

in interest rates. The persistence of these camdittould have a material adverse effect on ouohdangs and the availability, terms and cost
of such borrowings. In addition, further deterigratin the U.S. economy could adversely affectaamorate results, which could adversely
affect our operating results.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We lease all of the real property used in our cjra. We presently lease approximately 147,00@usxfeet of warehouse, production and
administrative space in Torrance, California. Thespnt term of the lease expires March 31, 2012nanldave the option to extend the least
an additional five years beginning April 1, 2012e\Also lease approximately 4,005 square feet atdjg@®ur main Torrance facility that is
used as additional office and record storage sgdwelease on this second building has terms wtoiticide with the lease on the main
Torrance building.

On October 28, 2004, we entered into a buildud-lease covering approximately 125,000 squaedeindustrial premises in Tijuana, Mexi
The lease has a term of 10 years from the datiadil@y was available for occupancy, and we haneption to extend the lease term for two
additional 5-year periods. In May 2005, we tookgession of these premises. In April 2006, we leaseadditional 61,000 square feet
adjoining our existing space. On October 18, 20@5¢entered into an amendment to lease an adja28r@d0 square feet. This space was
occupied in January 2007 and is used for coreveagisorting and storage related functions. Alleaiments have the same essential terms as
the original lease.

In addition, we occupy approximately 63,000 squdeet of leased remanufacturing, warehousing, afidec$pace facilities under seven
separate leases, which expire on various dategghrblay 14, 2012, in Singapore and Malaysia.

We also lease approximately 2,067 square feetfueo$pace in Nashville, Tennessee under a leatexpires on May 31, 2012.

We believe the above mentioned facilities are sidfit to satisfy our foreseeable warehousing, petidn, distribution and administrative offi
space requirements.

13




Table of Contents

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings arisinge normal course of conducting business. Mansmnt does not believe that the outcome
of these matters will have a material adverse impadts financial position or future results ofevations.

Iltem 4. Reserved
Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is traded on the National Assmriatf Securities Dealers Automated Quotation (“ND¥8Q") Global Market under the
trading symbol MPAA. The following table sets fottte high and low sale prices for our common sthatking fiscal 2010 and 2009.

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2008
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $4.95 $3.5¢4 $12.0C $5.04
2nd Quarte $5.51 $3.8¢ $ 7.5C $2.9C
3rd Quarte $5.51 $4.5¢4 $ 6.2¢ $3.0C
4th Quarte! $6.6¢ $4.8¢ $ 5.1¢€ $3.0t

As of June 8, 2010, there were 12,033,521 sharesrmfmon stock outstanding held by 33 holders afneecWe have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock. The declarationngf@rospective dividends is at the discretion ef Board of Directors and will be
dependent upon sufficient earnings, capital requémrets and financial position, general economic @i, state law requirements and other
relevant factors. Additionally, our agreement withr lenders prohibit the payment of dividends, @xatock dividends, without the lenders’
prior consent.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 odwistanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transadtiat prices deemed appropriate by management ©heo expiration date governing the
period over which we can repurchase shares unigepithigram. We made no share repurchases durice) £910.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensagplans as of March 31, 2010:

(@) (b) (©)
Number of securities
remaining available for future

Number of securities to b~ Weighted-average exercis issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding compensation plans (excludin
outstanding options, options warrants and securities reflected in column
Plan Category warrants and rights rights (a)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitiédens 1,628,33(1) $ 8.4t 214,60((2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,628,33 $ 8.4¢ 214,60(

(M Consists of options issued pursuant to our 198¢l&yee Stock Option Plan, 1996 Employee Stockd@pilan, 1994 Non-Employee
Director Stock Option Plan, 2003 Lc-Term Incentive Plan and 2004 N-Employee Director Stock Option Ple

@ Consists of options available for issuance undeR603 Lon¢-Term Incentive Plan and 2004 N-Employee Director Stock Option Ple
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative retorholders of common stock for the five years egditarch 31, 2010 with the NASDAQ
Composite Index and an index for our peer groug fder group is comprised of other automotive aftarket companies: Aftermarket
Technologies Corporation, Dorman Products, Ina, &tandard Motor Products, Inc. The comparisonraesi$100 was invested at the clos
business on March 31, 2005 in our common stockimedch of the comparison groups, and assumesestiment of dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100

March 2010
140 131.04
120.00
100,00
80,00
000
4000
2000
0.00 a -
331/2005 AAN2006 3302007 2008 VF2008 30
i Nbzcar Paks of America, Inc. i M ES DD Compoaite-Tolal Returna i Paer Group
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following selected historical consolidated fingl information as of and for each of the fisgafrs ended March 31, 2010, 2009, 2008,
2007 and 2006, has been derived from and shoutdazkin conjunction with our consolidated finanatdtements and related notes thereto.

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

Income Statement Data 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Net sales $147,225,00 $134,866,00 $133,337,00 $136,323,00 $108,397,00
Operating income (los: 18,307,00 10,642,00 12,751,00 (2,475,000 6,298,001
Net income (loss 9,646,00! 3,857,00! 4,607,001 (4,956,001 2,085,00!
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.8C $ 03z $ 04C $ (059 % 0.2
Diluted net income (loss) per sh $ 0.8C $ 03z $ 03¢ $ (059 $ 0.2fF

March 31,

Balance Sheet Data 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Total asset $163,480,00 $159,588,00 $141,408,00 $131,986,00 $101,136,00
Working capital 3,399,00! (3,569,001 6,097,00 (26,746,00) 12,851,00
Revolving loar — 21,600,00 — 22,800,00 6,300,00!
Term loan 9,500,00! — — — —
Capital lease obligatior 1,398,001 3,022,00! 4,276,001 5,197,00! 6,356,00!
Other long term liabilitie: 7,056,00! 7,364,001 4,654,001 3,859,00! 3,373,001
Shareholde’ equity $103,620,00 $ 93,083,000 $ 91,093,00 $ 47,828,00 $ 51,595,00

Working capital for fiscal year ended March 31, 80@s been adjusted for the reclassification of doventory as described in Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations”, Critical Aaating Policies|nventory, page 19.
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Iltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking stagens with respect to our future performance thaslire risks and uncertainties. Various
factors could cause actual results to differ matigrirom those projected in such statements. THasers include, but are not limited to:
concentration of sales to certain customers, chaimgeur relationship with any of our major custesehe increasing customer pressure for
lower prices and more favorable payment and o#ireng, the increasing demands on our working capitalsignificant strain on working
capital associated with large Remanufactured Goreritory purchases from customers, our abilitylttaim any additional financing we may
seek or require, our ability to achieve positivettélows from operations, potential future chanigesur previously reported results as a result
of the identification and correction of errors iar@ccounting policies or procedures or the pod¢ntiaterial weaknesses in our internal coni
over financial reporting, lower revenues than apéted from new and existing contracts, our failireneet the financial covenants or the other
obligations set forth in our bank credit agreensmd the bank’s refusal to waive any such defaattg,meaningful difference between
projected production needs and ultimate sales t@astomers, increases in interest rates, changés ifinancial condition of any of our major
customers, the impact of high gasoline pricesptitential for changes in consumer spending, conspnederences and general economic
conditions, increased competition in the automopiggts industry, including increased competitianfrChinese and other offshore
manufacturers, difficulty in obtaining Used Coresl@omponent parts or increases in the costs sktparts, political, criminal or economic
instability in any of the foreign countries where wonduct operations, currency exchange fluctustionforeseen increases in operating costs
and other factors discussed herein and in our diliregs with the SEC.

Management Overview

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideditwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§81Y") market, which is generally
serviced by the large retail chain outlets. Congsméno purchase parts from the DIY channel genenaditall parts into their vehicles
themselves. In most cases, this is a cheaper afteerthan having the repair performed by a prodessd installer. The second market is the
professional installer market, commonly known asdb-it-for-me (“DIFM”) market. This market is séced by the retail chains, traditional
warehouse distributors and the dealer networksefadly, the consumer in this channel is a professiparts installer.

We remanufacture alternators and starters for itrgouadt domestic cars, light trucks, heavy duty,adtiiral and industrial applications. These
products are distributed to both the DIY and DIFMrkets. Our products are distributed predominahtigughout the United States and
Canada. Our products are sold to the largest aurts petail chains in the United States and Canladaddition, our products are sold to various
traditional warehouses for the professional installand to major automobile manufacturers for totir aftermarket programs and their
warranty replacement programs (“OES”). Auto paetsif chains in total currently account for approately 35% of the North American after-
market for remanufactured alternators and starters.

Demand and replacement rates for after-market rafaatured alternators and starters generally iser@dth increases in miles driven and the
age of vehicles. According to industry statistlosth the average age of vehicles on the road ales mhiiven in North America have increased
during fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009.

Historically, our business has focused on the Dlafkat. The DIY market has grown at an estimatesl 048.2% per annum over the last ten
years. In times of recession, we believe consumrersnore apt to purchase replacement parts in faeriarket because of lower pric
compared to the DIFM market. We believe we havenmdy increased our market share in the DIY market.

The DIFM market is an attractive opportunity foogth. We are positioned to benefit from this madggportunity in two ways: (1) our auto
parts retail customers are expanding their effortarget the DIFM market and (2) we sell our prddwinder private label and our Quality-
Built ®, Talon®, Xtreme®, Reliance™ and other brand names directly to sergthat focus on professional installers. In &ddj we sell our
products to original equipment manufacturers fatrdution to the professional installer both faawanty replacement and their general after-
market channels. We have been successful in grosélas to this market.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlsiveed, a substantial portion of our sales
from a small number of large customers. Duringdit910, sales to our four largest
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customers constituted approximately 85% of oursa&ts. To mitigate the risk associated with thiscemtration of sales, we have increasingly
sought to enter into longer-term customer agreesith our major customers. These longer-term agess typically require us to commit a
significant amount of our working capital to buiftventory and increase production. In additionythywically include marketing and other
allowances that adversely impact near-term reveBueh agreements with new customers may also eeqgasito incur certain changeover
expenses.

To offset the pricing pressure and costs associgithdour agreements with our largest customershaxe moved substantially all of our U.S.
remanufacturing operations to lower cost faciliiiredlexico and Malaysia. We expect to maintain prciébn of remanufactured units that
require specialized service and/or rapid turnardoraur U.S. facility.

We have also increased the total number of cus®mersupply and expect sales growth from thes@mess as they grow their businesses
continue our strategy to further enhance our maskate in North America, we completed the acquisitf certain assets of Reliance, a
privately held remanufacturer of alternators ardtsts based in East Berlin, Connecticut. Thesdymts are sold under the Reliance™ brand
name.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemengéeaordance with generally accepted accountingiplizs in the United States, or GAAP.
Our significant accounting policies are discussedadtail below and in Note 2 in the Notes to Coigsdéd Financial Statements.

In preparing our consolidated financial statementsuse estimates and assumptions for mattersteanherently uncertain. We base our
estimates on historical experiences and reasoaablanptions. Our use of estimates and assumpfff@cssathe reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and the amount and timing of revenued axpenses we recognize for and during the regppériod. Actual results may differ from
our estimates.

Our remanufacturing operations require that we meduised Cores, a necessary raw material, frontoestomers and offer our customers
marketing and other allowances that impact reveacegnition. These elements of our business géestd accounting issues that are more
complex than many businesses our size or largexddiition, the relevant accounting standards asukeis continue to evolve.

Segment Reporting

We operate in one business segment pursuant guidence provided under the Financial Accountiran8ards Board (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC").

I nventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process andchtrecore value of finished goods.
Used Cores, the Used Core value of work in proaessthe Remanufactured Core portion of finisheddgawre classified as long-term core
inventory as described below under the caption §-tarm Core Inventory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid,
and is based upon the direct costs of materiabanallocation of labor and variable and fixed oeath costs. The cost of non-core inventory is
evaluated at least quarterly during the fiscal yeat adjusted as necessary to reflect current loiveost or market levels. These adjustments
are determined for individual items of inventonthvin each of the three classifications of non-doxentory as follows:

. Non-core raw materials are recorded at average ctéthvis based on the actual purchase price of raterals on hand. The average
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to
finished goods during the production proce
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. Non-core work in process is in various stages of pridogcis on average 50% complete and is valued®®t 6f the cost of a finishe
good. Nor-core work in process inventory historically compsgdess than 3% of the total I-core inventory balanc

. Finished goods cost includes the average casbmfcore raw materials and allocations of labor earibble and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed overtheasts are determined based on the average astialf the production facilities
over the prior twelve months which approximatesmaircapacity. This method prevents the distortioaliocated labor and overhead
costs that would occur during short periods of aiwadly low or high production. In addition, we exde certain unallocated overhead
such as severance costs, duplicative facility oe@dhcosts, and spoilage from the calculation apérmese them as period costs. For the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, céstpproximately $1,314,000 and $2,019,000, respelgti were considered
abnormal and thus excluded from the cost calcuiaitd charged directly to cost of sal

We record an allowance for potentially excess drabkete inventory based upon recent sales hidteeyguantity of inventory on-hand, and a
forecast of potential use of the inventory. We egwinventory on a monthly basis to identify excesantities and part numbers that are
experiencing a reduction in demand. In general, mambers with quantities representing a one teettyear supply are partially reserved for at
rates based upon management’s judgment and cantsigth historical rates. Any part numbers with gtites representing more than a three-
year supply are reserved for at a rate that corsjessible scrap and liquidation values and magshi@igh as 100% of cost if no liquidati
market exists for the part.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are @lgeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, therdfe revised if there are changes in the ovaratket for our products or market changes
that in management’s judgment, impact our abibitgell or liquidate potentially excess or obsolatentory.

We record vendor discounts as a reduction of irorgeg that are recognized as a reduction to cosalet as the inventories are sold.

Inventory Unreturne(

Inventory unreturned represents our estimate, basétstorical data and prospective informationvited directly by the customer, of finished
goods shipped to customers that we expect to bened, under our general right of return policyeathe balance sheet date. Because all core:
are classified separately as long term assetsn¥leatory unreturned balance includes only the dddst value of a finished good. The return
rate is calculated based on expected returns witleimormal operating cycle of one year. As suuh rélated amounts are classified in current
assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same manseua finished goods inventory.

Long-term Core Inventory

Long-term core inventory consists of:
. Used Cores purchased from core brokers and héfvémtory at our facilities
. Used Cores returned by our customers and held/aniory at our facilities

. Used Cores returned by e-users to customers but not yet returned to uslassified as Remanufactured Cores until they
physically received by u.

. Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgragbour facilities; ani

. Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatism@spart of the finished goods sold to the custof@rthese Remanufactured Cores,
we expect the finished good containing the Remantufad Core to be returned under our general a§heturn policy or a similar
Used Core to be returned to us by the customexaéh case, for cred
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Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®tital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficieent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average licstbpurchase prices is primarily made up of Usede8 for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichehera less liquid market. We must purchase thesa (Cores from core brokers because our
customers do not have a sufficient supply of thresger Used Cores available for the core exchanogram.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainezbre broker transactions and are valued basex/erage purchase price. The avel
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent altdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@zwds in subsequent periods even as the
source of these Used Cores shifts to our core exgghprogram.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lower ot @vsnarket value. In the absence of sufficienerggurchases, we use core broker
lists to assess whether Used Core cost exceeds@isednarket value on an item by item basis. Tivaany reason for the insufficient recent
purchases is that we obtain most of our Used Guorenitory from the customer core exchange program.

We classify all of our core inventories as longxterssets. The determination of the long-term diaasion is based on our view that the value
of the cores is not consumed or realized in casimgwur normal operating cycle, which is one yieasirmost of the cores recorded in inventc
According to guidance provided under the FASB AB@rent assets are defined as “assets or resaroogvonly identified as those which are
reasonably expected to be realized in cash orsaddnsumed during the normal operating cycle efttbsiness.” We do not believe that core
inventories, which we classify as long-term, arestoned because the credits issued upon the retursed Cores offset the amounts invoiced
when the Remanufactured Cores included in finisiwmtls were sold. We do not expect the core invEgdo be consumed, and thus we do
not expect to realize cash, until our relationshith a customer ends, a possibility that we corrsidmote based on existing long-term
customer agreements and historical experience.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofihed goods sold, our customer will not send us@dlCore to obtain the credit we offer
under our core exchange program. Therefore, basediohistorical estimate, we derecognize the wahee for these finished goods upon sale,
as we believe they have been consumed and we balized cash.

We realize cash for only the core exchange progfamntfall of approximately 4.5%. This shortfall repents the historical difference between
the number of finished goods shipped to customaigize number of Used Cores returned to us by mesta We do not realize cash for the
remaining portion of the cores because the créstiteed upon the return of Used Cores offset theuatsanvoiced when the Remanufactured
Cores included in finished goods were sold. We atoempect to realize cash for the remaining portibthese cores until our relationship with
a customer ends, a possibility that we consideoterhased on existing long-term customer agreenagmtistorical experience.

For these reasons, we concluded that it is moreogpipte to classify core inventory as long-terrseds.

Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmessthe value of Remanufactured Cores we havénased from customers, which are held
by the customers and remain on the customers’ gesmirhe purchase is made through the issuancedifscagainst that customer’s
receivables either on a one time basis or oveigagea-upon period. The credits against the custemexeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously kstted with the customer. At the same time, we mé¢be longterm core inventory depo:
for the Remanufactured Cores purchased at its desgrmined as noted under Long-term Core Inveniing long-term core inventory deposit
is stated at the lower of cost or market. The sstablished at the time of the transaction basetthe then current cost, determined as noted
under Long-term Core Inventory. The difference ketwthe credit granted and the cost of the long-tare inventory deposit is treated as a
sales allowance reducing revenue. When the pursteasamade over an agreed-upon period, the longdere inventory deposit is recorded at
the same time the credit is issued to the custdonehe purchase of the Remanufactured Cores.
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At least annually, and as often as quatrterly, reitiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeridosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmeed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rexfentured Cores is reviewed to determine that guygegate value of Remanufactured Cq
in the account has not changed during the repoptargpd. We evaluate the cost of Remanufacture@£supporting the aggregate long-term
core inventory deposit account each quarter. Ifdeatify any permanent reduction in either the nemdr the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the gustdocation, we will record a reduction in thedeterm core inventory deposit account
during that period.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when our performance is cammad all of the following criteria have been met
. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:
. Delivery has occurred or services have been redd
. The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
. Collectibility is reasonably assure

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippgaint, revenue is recognized on the date of shipinter products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the estthtatactual date of delivery. We include shippamgl handling charges in the gross invoice
price to customers and classify the total amouméasnue. Shipping and handling costs are recdrdedst of sales.

Revenue Recognition; Mof-Core-Value Basis

The price of a finished product sold to customerganerally comprised of separately invoiced amefortthe Remanufactured Core included
in the product (“Remanufactured Core value”) andtfie value added by remanufacturing (“unit valu&he unit value is recorded as revenue
based on our then current price list, net of ajpplie discounts and allowances. Based on our exjerieontractual arrangements with
customers and inventory management practices, rippaitely 96% of the remanufactured alternators staders we sell to customers are
replaced by similar Used Cores sent back for ctaditustomers under our core exchange prograntdordance with our net-of-core-value
revenue recognition policy, we do not recognizeRleenanufactured Core value as revenue when ttehédiproducts are sold. We generally
limit the number of Used Cores sent back underctiie exchange program to the number of similar Reri@g&gtured Cores previously shipped
to each customer.

Revenue Recognition and Defer— Core Revenue

Full price Remanufactured Cora&hen we ship a product, we invoice certain custenm@rthe Remanufactured Core value portion of the
product at full Remanufactured Core sales pricedboutot recognize revenue for the Remanufactured Calue at that time. For these
Remanufactured Cores, we recognize core revenws hgmn an estimate of the rate at which our custemvill pay cash for Remanufactured
Cores in lieu of sending back similar Used Core<fedits under our core exchange program.

Nominal price Remanufactured CorWe invoice other customers for the Remanufacturee: @alue portion of product shipped at a nominal
Remanufactured Core price. Unlike the full priceviR@ufactured Cores, we only recognize revenue frominal Remanufactured Cores not
expected to be replaced by a similar Used Corelsmit under the core exchange program when wevedlimt we have met all of the
following criteria:

. We have a signed agreement with the customer cayéie nominally priced Remanufactured Cores npeeted to be sent back un
the core exchange program, and the agreement persfysthe number of Remanufactured Cores our costavill pay cash for in lie
of sending back a similar Used Core under our eaohange program and the basis on which the nolyipated Remanufactured
Cores are to be valued (normally the average pecdRemanufactured Core stipulated in the agreérr
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. The contractual date for reconciling our records emstome’s records of the number of nominally priced Remaatuired Cores n¢
expected to be replaced by similar Used Coreslssrk under our core exchange program must be ioutvent or a prior periot

. The reconciliation must be completed and agredxy tihe custome!
. The amount must be billed to the custon

Deferral of Core RevenueAs noted previously, we have in the past and malge future agree to buy back Remanufactured iooen certait
customers. The difference between the credit gdaauel the cost of the Remanufactured Cores bouwgiit ils treated as a sales allowance
reducing revenue. As a result of the ongoing Rerfzentured Core buybacks, we have now deferred @wenue from these customers until
there is no expectation that sales allowances ededovith Remanufactured Core buybacks from tleeséomers will offset core revenues that
would otherwise be recognized once the criteri@thatbove have been met. At March 31, 2010 and Ré9anufactured Core revenue of
$6,061,000 and $5,934,000, respectively, was dederr

Revenue Recognition; General Right of Re

We allow our customers to return goods to us theit end-user customers have returned to them h&héte returned item is or is not
defective (warranty returns). In addition, under terms of certain agreements with our customedsratustry practice, our customers from
time to time are allowed stock adjustments wheir theentory of certain product lines exceeds thécpated sales to end-user customers
(stock adjustment returns). We seek to limit thgragate of customer returns, including warranty stodk adjustment returns, to less than !
of unit sales. In some instances, we allow a hidghezl of returns in connection with a significaqdate order.

We provide for such anticipated returns of inveptaoy reducing revenue and the related cost of dalethe units estimated to be returned.

Our allowance for warranty returns is establishaskell on a historical analysis of the level of thie of return as a percentage of total unit
sales. Stock adjustment returns do not occur aspagific time during the year, and the expectedllef these returns cannot be reasonably
estimated based on a historical analysis. Our altm® for stock adjustment returns is based on fipeastomer inventory levels, inventory
movements and information on the estimated timiingt@ck adjustment returns provided by our cust@mner

Sales I ncentives

We provide various marketing allowances to ouraungrs, including sales incentives and concessMagketing allowances related to a sin
exchange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues arededar when such incentives are offered.
Other marketing allowances, which may only be aggpéigainst future purchases, are recorded as eti@uto revenues in accordance with a
schedule set forth in the relevant contract. Salesntive amounts are recorded based on the véline égncentive provided.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price overfair value of identifiable net assets acquiretlusiness combinations. We do not amortize
goodwill but we evaluate goodwill for impairment an annual basis or more frequently if events muohstances occur that would indicate a
reduction in fair value of the Company. Such inthesinclude, but are not limited to, events ocuimstances such as a significant adverse
change in the business climate, unanticipated cttigre a loss of key personnel, adverse legakgutatory developments, or a significant
decline in the market price of our common stockadidition, we identified a single reporting unhgtCompany itself) as we had not identified
any components of the Company beneath the onetopeszgment described in Note 2 in the Notes tosBtidated Financial Statements.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability nogt, which measures deferred income taxes by apgpbmacted statutory rates in effect at
the balance sheet date to the differences betvirgetax basis of assets and liabilities and thgiored amounts in the financial statements. The
resulting asset or liability is adjusted to reflebinges in the tax laws as they occur. A valuaitmwance is provided to reduce deferred tax
assets when it is more likely than not that a partf the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The primary components of our income tax provigioenefit) are (i) the current liability or refundelfor federal, state and foreign income
taxes and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&trred income tax asset, including the effe@rogf change in the valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependemt opoability to generate sufficient future taxalleome. In evaluating this ability,
management considers long-term agreements and Rémstured Core purchase obligations with our mejmtomers that expire at various
dates through March 2019. Based on our forecastiofuture operating results, we believe that inre likely than not that future taxable
income will be sufficient to realize the recordezfatred tax assets. We periodically compare owcfasts to actual results, and there can be no
assurance that the forecasted results will be aebie

Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk from material moveaminforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of agnificant operations in Mexico, our primary risiates to changes in the rates between the
U.S. dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate thigency risk, we enter into forward foreign exaparmontracts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. The extent to which we use forwardifin exchange contracts is periodically reviewelijht of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipageglirements. The use of derivative financial mstents allows us to reduce our exposure to
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by changes
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreremulgdion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. We had foreign
exchange contracts with an aggregate U.S. dollaivalgnt notional value (and materially the sammimal fair value) of $6,159,000 and
$7,224,000 at March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectiVdigse contracts generally expire in a year @ l&ay changes in the fair value of foreign
exchange contracts are accounted for as an incoealerease to general and administrative expensesrent period earnings. During fiscal
2010 and 2009, a gain of $1,565,000 and a los4,dP4,000, respectively, were recorded in generdlaministrative expenses due to the
change in the value of the forward foreign curreexghange contracts subsequent to entering intodhacts.

Share-based Payments

Effective April 1, 2006, we began using the modifigospective application method of transitiondbrour stock-based compensation plans.
The modified prospective application method of siian requires that stock-based compensation esgoba recorded for all new and unvested
stock options that are ultimately expected to asshe requisite service is rendered from Apr2dQ6 forward. Accordingly, while reported
results for subsequent fiscal years reflect theptdio of this guidance, prior year amounts havelhsan restated.

Fair Value Measurements

We adopted the guidance on fair value measurenaenttslisclosures for all financial assets and g on April 1, 2008. This guidance
defined fair value as the price that would be nesgito sell an asset or paid to transfer a lighifitan orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. It also ksted a framework for measuring fair value in ademce with GAAP and expanded the
disclosures required for fair value measurementsA@ril 1, 2009, we adopted the new fair value arting principles for all non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities, except fenis that are recognized or disclosed at fair vialtke financial statements on a recurring basis,
which did not have any material impact on our ficiahcondition, results of operations or cash flows
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New Accounting Pronouncements
Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued new guidance on tsattnent of subsequent events which is intendedtédbksh general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that oefter the balance sheet date but before finantEg¢ments are issued or are available to be
issued. Specifically, this new guidance sets ftrthperiod after the balance sheet date duringtwinanagement of a reporting entity should
evaluate events or transactions that occurreddtantial recognition or disclosure in the finandtdtements, the circumstances under which ar
entity should recognize events or transactionsdbatirred after the balance sheet date in its éiahstatements, and the disclosures that an
entity should make about events or transactionsot@urred after the balance sheet date. This neslagce was effective for fiscal years and
interim periods ended after June 15, 2009, and brisipplied prospectively. We adopted and appliectovisions of the new guidance in the
first quarter of fiscal 2010.

In February 2010, subsequent to our adoption oh#ve guidance discussed above, the FASB issuedagpdaidance on subsequent events
amending the May 2009 guidance. Under this amegd@&tance, SEC filers are no longer required toldsgcthe date through which
subsequent events have been evaluated in origiisaligd and revised financial statements. Thisaguid was effective immediately and we
adopted these new requirements upon issuancesajuidance.

Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance orréla¢ntent of transfers of financial assets whictmiglates the concept of a “qualifying
special-purpose entity,” changes the requirememtddrecognizing financial assets, and require#iaddl disclosures in order to enhance
information reported to users of financial statetaday providing greater transparency about trassféfinancial assets, including
securitization transactions, and an entity’s caritig involvement in and exposure to the risks egldb transferred financial assets. This new
guidance is effective as of the beginning of aitgatfirst fiscal year that begins after Novemidér, 2009. We do not expect the adoption of
this guidance on April 1, 2010 to have any matengdact on our consolidated financial position aesults of operations.

Consolidation of Variance Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whigktnasithe consolidation guidance applicable to bégimterest entities and is effective as
of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal ye&at begins after November 15, 2009. We do not @xpecadoption of this guidance on April 1,
2010 to have any material impact on our consol@ifiteancial position and results of operations.

Accounting Standards Codificatio

In June 2009, the FASB approved the FASB ASC asitigde source of authoritative, nongovernmentalMBAexcept for rules and
interpretive releases of the SEC, which are sowtasthoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. All etthon-grandfathered, n@EC accountin
literature not included in the ASC has become nathitative. The ASC is effective for financiabments for interim or annual reporting
periods ending after September 15, 2009. We beyasd the new guidelines and numbering system fibesicby the ASC when referring to
GAAP during the second quarter of fiscal 2010. Ws ASC was not intended to change or alter exisBA@P, it did not have any impact on
our consolidated financial position and resultepérations.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu

In August 2009, the FASB issued new guidance toigeoclarification for the fair value measuremehliabilities in circumstances in which a
guoted price in an active market for an identicility is not available. This guidance is effeetifor the first reporting period, including
interim periods, beginning after issuance. The &dopf this guidance on October 1, 2009 did natehany material impact on our
consolidated financial position and results of agiens.
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In January 2010, the FASB issued an update whighimes new disclosures for transfers in and oltesfel 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy and expanded disclosures for activitiyguel 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The updatealrifies existing disclosures regarding the
level of disaggregation for disclosure and discteswabout inputs and valuation techniques. Thedisglosures and clarifications of existing
disclosures are effective for interim and annupbréng periods beginning after December 15, 2@ adoption of this update on January 1,
2010 did not have any impact on our consolidatedrftial position and results of operations. Theld&ires regarding certain Level 3 activity
are effective for fiscal years beginning after Dmber 15, 2010. We do not expect the adoption sfghidance on April 1, 2011 to have any
material impact on our consolidated financial gositand results of operations.

Subsequent Events

On May 12, 2010, we entered into a first amendrteeour credit agreement with our lenders, UnioniBahA., as administrative agent and
lender, and Branch Banking & Trust Company. Thigadment, among other things, provides that theolong reserve in connection with ¢
revolving facility under the credit agreement bere@ased from $7,500,000 to $10,000,000. The bongweéserve remains in effect only if we
are a party to a receivable discount program putsieawhich our accounts receivable owed to usumjargest customer are being discounted.

In May 2010, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS)aoded its examination of our federal income &ixims for the fiscal 2007 and 2008 tax
years. The IRS required no changes to our taxnetiar those fiscal years as file

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes certain key operatiata for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2010 2009 2008
Gross profi 28.1% 29.2% 27.%
Cash flow provided by (used in) operatic $18,347,00 $(11,078,00)  $(10,039,00)
Finished goods turnover ( 5.C 4.4 4.€
Return on equity (2 10.2% 4.2% 9.€%

(1) Finished goods turnover is calculated bydlig the cost of goods sold for the year by theaye between beginning and ending non-
core finished goods inventory values, for eachaligear. We believe that this provides a usefulsueaof our ability to turn production
into revenues

(2) Return on equity is computed as net income foffifoal year divided by sharehold’ equity at the beginning of the fiscal year :
measures our ability to invest sharehol’ funds profitably.
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Following is our results of operation, reflectedagsercentage of net sales:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2010 2009 2008
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 71.¢ 70.7 72.1
Gross profi 28.1 29.5 27.¢
Operating expense
General and administrati\ 10.€ 14.4 14.¢
Sales and marketir 4.1 3.6 2.€
Research and developmt 1.C 1kt 1.C
Impairment of goodwil — 1.€ —
Operating incomi 12.4 7.8 9.5
Gain on acquisitiol (0.9 — —
Interest expens— net of interest incom 3.2 3.1 4.1
Income tax expens 3.€ 1.8 2.C
Net income 6.5 2.8 3.4

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009

Net Sale:. Net sales during fiscal 2010 increased by $12(B¥H or 9.2%, to $147,225,000 compared to nesshleing fiscal 2009 of
$134,866,000. This increase was due to sales tocostemers acquired as a result of our acquisiémsan increase in sales to our other
existing customers. Our net sales during the fiivet months of fiscal 2010 were negatively impadigdan inventory reduction program
initiated by one of our largest customers, andragtesstanding with another customer to delay shiggneecause of its then uncertain financial
future. In addition, our net sales during fiscal @@vere positively impacted by the recognition 845,000 of previously deferred core rever
We have recognized this revenue because we doxpeteto incur any additional sales incentive aloees associated with Remanufactured
Core buybacks from a certain customer.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profitost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesaised during fiscal 2010 to 71.9% from 70.7% scdl
2009, resulting in a corresponding decrease irgoass profit percentage of 1.2% to 28.1% duringdfi£010 from 29.3% during fiscal 2009.
This decrease in our gross profit percentage wiagapity due to: (i) the reversal of a $1,307,00@raal related to the customs duties claims
during fiscal 2009 which enhanced margins in fi@09, (ii) an increase in packaging costs of $1,080 reflecting increased sales to new
customers and improved and more costly packagirtgrnats compared to fiscal 2009, and (iii) an ims® in the provision for excess and
obsolete inventory of $842,000 compared to fis€8IR These decreases in gross profit were partéiibet by the lower per unit manufactur
costs during fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 20@%ddition, our gross profit in the prior year wasitively impacted by acceleration of
$2,300,000 of promotional allowances earned dutiegourth quarter of fiscal 2008, which otherwigeuld have been earned by one of our
customers during the fourth quarter of fiscal 268@®ugh the first four months of fiscal 2009.

General and Administrativéur general and administrative expenses durin@lfd@10 were $15,580,000, which represents a decmafa
$3,899,000, or 20.0%, from general and administeagxpenses during fiscal 2009 of $19,479,000. @aease in general and administrative
expenses was primarily due to the following: (ain of $1,565,000 recorded due to the changdwifiair value of foreign exchange contracts
compared to a loss of $1,194,000 during fiscal 2009%1,323,000 of decreased professional sesviees, and (iii) $372,000 of decreased
stock-based compensation. These decreases in andradministrative expenses were partially offse$673,000 of increased provision for
bad debt expense during fiscal 2010.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses during fiscH) 2@creased $777,000, or 14.8%, to $6,019,000 $61242,000 durir
fiscal 2009. This increase was due primarily toaldition of employees as a result of our acquoisgj and increased commission expenses du
to higher net sales. These increases in sales arieting expenses were partially offset by decregsefessional services and consulting fees,
and travel expenses during fiscal 2010.
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Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses decrea$sd By00, or 28.7%, to $1,421,000 during fiscal®fitm
$1,993,000 during fiscal 2009. The decrease inarebeand development expenses was due primaribwter compensation expenses resulting
from a reduction in workforce and consulting fees.

Impairment of Goodwil. During fiscal 2009, we recorded a non-cash pxertgpairment charge of $2,191,000. After recordimg impairment
charge, we had no goodwill remaining on our Comlstéid Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2009.

Gain on acquisition During fiscal 2010, we recorded a gain of $1,880,in connection with the acquisition of certagsets of Reliance as the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquiredezded the fair value of the consideration transterr

Interest ExpenseOur interest expense, net of interest income, duigtal 2010 was $4,710,000. This represents enredse of $514,000 over
interest expense, net of interest income, of $4MBduring fiscal 2009. This increase was pringaattributable to a higher balance of
receivables being discounted under the receivabtmdnt programs during fiscal 2010 compared twafi009. During fiscal 2010, interest
expense incurred on the higher average outstaitdilagnces on our revolving loan was offset by lointgrest rates.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2010, we recorded income tax expensk5i282,000 compared to income tax expense of $088 in fiscal 2009. This
increase was primarily due to higher pre-tax incqaely offset by the benefit of lower statutory tates in foreign taxing jurisdictions in
fiscal 2010 compared to the prior year.

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

Net Sale:. Net sales in fiscal 2009 increased by $1,529,000,1%, to $134,866,000 compared to net salésdal 2008 of $133,337,000.
This increase was primarily due to sales to newoeners resulting from our acquisitions during fis2@09. We experienced a significant
decrease in our net sales in the fourth quartéiscédl 2009. Our net sales in the fourth quartefisafal 2009 decreased by $5,973,000, or 16
compared to the same period of the prior yearctifig the impact of changes in the purchasing aturm patterns of our existing customers
addition to the impact of general economic condgicsales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 wiemgacted by (i) an inventory reduction
program initiated by one of our largest customerhée fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, which we bedieesulted in a temporary reduction in s
to that customer and (ii) by a significant drogsales to a customer as a result of an understatalidejay shipments because of an uncertain
financial future. Although we expect our businassdntinue uninterrupted with this customer, theae be no assurance that actions taken by
other interested parties, including consumers, natlhave a continuing detrimental effect on olatrenship or level of continuing business
with this customer.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profitost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesatest in fiscal 2009 to 70.7% from 72.1% in fis2@08,
resulting in a corresponding increase in our gpoefit percentage of 1.4% to 29.3% in fiscal 208 27.9% in fiscal 2008. This increase in
our gross profit percentage was primarily dueijathg lower per unit manufacturing costs resultiram the increased utilization of our Mex
and Malaysia facilities, and (ii) the reversal d§5307,000 accrual related to the customs dulzsis during fiscal 2009, for which the accr
was initially recorded during fiscal 2008. Thesergases were partially offset by increases in reperiod costs, and a reduction in scrap
metal prices that resulted in less revenue forsoteip metal during fiscal 2009 compared to fis€@8I& Our gross profit in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2009 decreased by $5,256,000, or 46.6%, eoeapto the same period of the prior year primagfecting (i) customer purchasing and
return patterns, (ii) a reduction in scrap metédq® that resulted in less revenue for our scrajalirend (iii) increases in certain period costs in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 compared to #@ea period of the prior year.

General and Administrativéur general and administrative expenses for fi208P were $19,479,000, which represents a decodase
$267,000, or 1.4%, from general and administragixgenses for fiscal 2008 of $19,746,000. The deergageneral and administrative
expenses was primarily due to the following: (L8000 of decreased audit and other professiomaktss fees, (i) $544,000 of decreased
stock-based compensation, and (i) $393,000 ofetesed severance and other related expenses. ddersases in general and administrative
expenses were partially offset by a net increaskl(#46,000 of expense recorded due to the chandes value of foreign exchange peso
contracts during fiscal 2009.
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Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2002ased $1,786,000, or 51.7%, to $5,242,000 $8m56,000 for
fiscal 2008. This increase was due primarily toftilowing: (i) $723,000 of increased compensatomense due primarily to the addition of
employees which resulted from our acquisition ofA(ii) $479,000 of increased trade show and adsieg expenses, (iii) $211,000 of
increased travel-related expenses, and (iv) $20490creased consulting fees.

Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses increasg2By000, or 57.3%, to $1,993,000 in fiscal 20@@rfr
$1,267,000 in fiscal 2008. The increase was primegiated to an increase in compensation, comspfees and travel-related expenses in
connection with our heavy duty after-market initiatrelated to alternators and starters.

Impairment of Goodwil. During fiscal 2009, we determined that goodwidisafully impaired as the carrying value of $2,190,0ncluding the
fourth quarter adjustment of $100,000, exceededntipdied fair value of zero, and therefore we relaat a pre-tax, non-cash goodwill
impairment charge of $2,191,000 as disclosed irCiwesolidated Statements of Income in the thirdtguaf fiscal 2009. After recording the
impairment charge, we had no goodwill remainingpan Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31,.2009

Interest ExpenstOur interest expense, net of interest income sicafi 2009 was $4,196,000. This represents a decoé&d ,252,000 over
interest expense, net of interest income, of $50BMIn fiscal 2008. This decrease was primarilsitaitable to a lower balance of receivables
being discounted during fiscal 2009 compared twafi008. During fiscal 2009, interest expense firezlion the higher average outstanding
balances on our line of credit was offset by loiméerest rates.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2009, we recorded income tax expensk2g589,000 compared to income tax expense of $060 in fiscal 2008. This
decrease was primarily due to lower pre-tax incpamtly offset by higher book income tax rates stél 2009 compared to the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At March 31, 2010, we had working capital of $3,88®, a ratio of current assets to current liabgiof 1.1:1, and cash of $1,210,000,
compared to negative working capital of $3,569,G0ftio of current assets to current liabiliti€©®4:1, and cash of $452,000 at March 31,
2009. The significant increase in working capitahfi March 31, 2009 primarily resulted from the meds from our term loan being used to
pay down the balance of our revolving loan underadd credit agreement.

During fiscal 2010, we used cash generated by tipasa from our use of receivable discount progravits certain of our major customers,
from the increase in accounts payable due to iseem our payment terms from certain of our vesdand from our new credit facility as our
primary sources of liquidity. These sources wedus repay the remaining revolving loan balancguasition of certain assets of Reliance,
and to finance capital expenditure.

We believe our cash generated by operations, arm@vailable under our new credit agreement, andash and short term investments on
hand are sufficient to satisfy our expected futuogking capital needs, capital lease commitmesigsayment of the current portion of our term
loan, and capital expenditure obligations overrteet twelve months.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was $48,800 during fiscal 2010 compared to net cash irsegerating activities of $11,078,0
during fiscal 2009. The most significant changesperating activities during fiscal 2010 comparedigcal 2009 were the (i) reinstatement in
September 2009 of a receivable discount prograim evie of our major customers which had been sugueby the customer in May 2008,
(i) an increase in our accounts payable and addiabilities compared to fiscal 2009, and (iii)rdang-term core inventory levels increased
less during fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 ghimarily to increased levels of RemanufacturedeSdield for sale at our customers’
locations. These changes in operating activitieewartly offset by an increase in
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our non-core inventory levels during fiscal 201@ngared to a decrease in our non-core inventonidelging fiscal 2009.

Net cash used in investing activities was $3,666 &d $9,846,000 during fiscal 2010 and 2009, rsmdy. The decrease in net cash use
investing activities primarily resulted from thegagsition of certain assets of Reliance duringdls2010, compared to the acquisitions of
certain assets of both Automotive Importing Mantdaaog, Inc. (“AIM”) and Suncoast Automotive Prodacinc. (“SCP”) during fiscal 2009.
Our capital expenditures during fiscal 2010 of $5,000 primarily related to the purchase of equipinfier our manufacturing facilities. Duril
fiscal 2009, we incurred capital expenditures aB%Z,000, which were primarily related to upgratie@équipment and improvements at our
Torrance, California and offshore facilities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $13,9a0 @uring fiscal 2010 compared to net cash provlgetinancing activities of $19,732,01
during fiscal 2009. Cash resources generated bsatipg activities and the proceeds from our teremlavere primarily used to pay down the
balance of our revolving loan under our old credjteement. The borrowings under our revolving lioathe prior year were primarily used to
finance our acquisitions of certain assets of A &CP, pay down our accounts payable balancedpaftset the reduction in cash resoul
due to one of our customer’s suspension of itsivabée discount program to discount our accountgik@ble. In September 2009, this
customer reinstated the use of this program.

Capital Resources
Debt

Our amended and restated credit agreement, withank (the “Old Credit Agreement”) provided us wéthevolving loan of up to
$40,000,000, including obligations under outstagdeiters of credit. The Old Credit Agreement, amother things, allowed us to borrow
under the revolving loan for the purpose of consatimg certain permitted acquisitions.

In June 2009, we entered into a sixth amendmethiet®Ild Credit Agreement with our bank. This ameadtmamong other things: (i) created a
borrowing reserve in the amount of $7,500,000 reskby our bank against our revolving loan commith@nount and available in the event
the receivables from our largest customer wereongdr discounted and (ii) amended certain finarmaknants, including our leverage ratio
and EBITDA covenants.

In August 2009, we entered into a seventh amendtoghe Old Credit Agreement with our bank. Thisesutiment, among other things,
extended the expiration date of the credit factityuly 13, 2010.

The OId Credit Agreement, among other things, nexguus to maintain certain financial covenantsiuiding cash flow, fixed charge coverage
ratio and leverage ratio and a number of resteéctiovenants, including limits on capital expendituand operating leases, prohibitions against
additional indebtedness, payment of dividends,geeaf assets and loans to officers and/or affsiate addition, it was an event of default
under the Old Credit Agreement if Selwyn Joffe wadonger our CEO.

In October 2009, we entered into a revolving cradi term loan agreement (the “New Credit Agreefii@vith our bank and one additional
lender (the “Lenders”), which permits us to borrogvto $45,000,000 (the “New Credit Facility”). TNew Credit Facility is comprised of (i) a
revolving facility with a $7,000,000 letter of ciedub-facility and (ii) a term loan. We may borr@n a revolving basis up to an amount equal
to $35,000,000 minus all outstanding letter of @rebligations minus a borrowing reserve of $7,800, (the “Revolving Loan”). The
borrowing reserve remains in effect only if we pegty to a receivable discount program pursuamthizh our accounts receivable owed to us
by our largest customer are being discounted. &tre toan is in the principal amount of $10,000,0®@ “Term Loan”).

The New Credit Agreement, among other things, meguiis to maintain certain financial covenantduiiog tangible net worth, fixed charge
coverage ratio and leverage ratio covenants.
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The Term Loan matures in October 2014 and reqgpiiesipal payments of $500,000 on a quarterly badig first quarterly payment was due
on January 4, 2010. The Revolving Loan expiresdtoer 2011 and provides us the option to requesd three one-year extensions.

The Lenders hold a security interest in substdnt#l of our assets. There was no outstandingrzaan the Revolving Loan at March 31,
2010. At March 31, 2009, the balance of the revg\Jban under the Old Credit Agreement was $21(BI0,Additionally, we had reserved
$1,826,000 of the Revolving Loan for standby letteir credit for workers’ compensation insurance $h@48,000 reserved for commercial
letters of credit as of March 31, 2010. As of Ma8dh 2010, $31,826,000 was available under the RieeplLoan, and of this, $7,500,000 was
reserved for use in the event our largest custalisepntinued its current practice of having oulereables discounted.

In May 2010, we entered into a first amendmenh®oNew Credit Agreement with our Lenders. This adneent provides, among other things,
that the borrowing reserve against our Revolvingi.oommitment amount be increased from $7,500,0&2®,000,000.

We were in compliance with all financial covenamtsler the New Credit Agreement as of March 31, 2010

The Revolving Loan and the Term Loan bear integiesither our bank'reference rate plus an applicable margin or alborinterbank Offere
Rate (“LIBOR”) rate (which in the case of the Telbman shall not be lower than 3.75%) plus an appleanargin, as selected by us in
accordance with the New Credit Agreement. The esgfee rate is, as further described in the New €rggtieement, the higher of our bank’s
announced base rate and the Federal funds raté/plpsrcent. The applicable margins are determinediepiiaon a prospective basis as set
forth below:

Leverage Ratio Applicable LIBOR Margin Applicable Reference Rate Margit
Less than 1.5:1. 275 basis point 150 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.5:: 300 basis point 175 basis point

Our ability to comply in future periods with thefincial covenants in the New Credit Agreement, éélbend on our ongoing financial and
operating performance, which, in turn, will be sdtjto economic conditions and to financial, businend other factors, many of which are
beyond our control and will be substantially deparicbn the selling prices and demand for our prijuwtistomer demands for marketing
allowances and other concessions, raw materiad,castl our ability to successfully implement ouem@l business strategy, including
acquisitions. If a violation of any of the covermntcurs in the future, we would attempt to obtaimaiver or an amendment from our Lenders.
No assurance can be given that we would be sucd@sshis regard

Receivable Discount Prograr

Our liquidity has been positively impacted by readile discount programs we have established witlaioecustomers and their respective
banks. Under these programs, we have the optisaltthose customers’ receivables to those bani&slatcount to be agreed upon at the time
the receivables are sold. The weighted averageuwsainder this program was 4.5% during fiscal 2846 has allowed us to accelerate
collection of receivables aggregating $85,592,00@ lveighted average of 334 days. While these geraents have reduced our working
capital needs, there can be no assurance thatghag@ams will continue in the future. These progsaesulted in interest expense of
$3,599,000 during fiscal 2010. Interest expensaltiag from these programs would increase if insérates rise, if utilization of these
discounting arrangements expands or if the discperibd is extended to reflect more favorable payinterms to customers. In September
2009, one of these customers reinstated the ugereiceivable discount program which had beeniptsly suspended in May 2008.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2010, we had no off-balance sheetftirag or other arrangements with unconsolidatediesor financial partnerships (such as
entities often referred to as structured financepacial purpose entities) established for purposéacilitating off-balance sheet financing or
other debt arrangements or for other contractusdlyow or limited purposes.

Multi-year Customer Agreements

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeittsmany of our major customers. Under these agesésnwhich typically have initial
terms of at least four years, we are designatékeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedeggiries of remanufactured alternators and
starters. In consideration for our designation assiomer’s exclusive or primary supplier, we tyliic provide the customer with a package of
marketing incentives. These incentives differ froomtract to contract and can include (i) the isseanf a specified amount of credits against
receivables in accordance with a schedule set forthe relevant contract, (ii) support for a pautar customer’s research or marketing efforts
provided on a scheduled basis, (i) discounts g@in connection with each individual shipmenpadduct, and (iv) other marketing, reseal
store expansion or product development supportsd kentracts typically require that we meet ongasitagndards related to fulfillment, price,
and quality. Our contracts with major customersiexat various dates through March 2019.

In March 2005, we entered into an agreement wittagor customer. As part of this agreement, ourgiedion as this customer’s exclusive
supplier of remanufactured imported alternators staders was extended from February 28, 2008 te®eer 31, 2012. In addition to
customary marketing allowances, we agreed to aedl@ customer’s import alternator and starter Rerfaetured Core inventory. The
customer was obligated to purchase the RemanuéattrrUsed Cores in the customer’s inventory ugomination of the agreement for any
reason. We established a long-term core inventeppsit account for the value of the Remanufact@es inventory estimated to be on hand
with the customer. In January 2010, as a resutie@fcquisition of this customer by another of major customers this agreement was
terminated. However, this agreement was replacezhtagreement with the acquiring customer. As @iathiis new agreement, we were
designated as the acquiring customer’s primary lgampgf remanufactured import alternators and startThe obligation to purchase the
Remanufactured or Used Cores upon terminationeobtti agreement was transferred to the acquirisgpouer under the new agreement.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we entereld ia five-year agreement with one of the worldigést automobile manufacturers to supply
this manufacturer with a new line of remanufactumtdrnators and starters for the United StatesGamhdian markets. We expanded our
operations and built-up our inventory to meet #guirements of this contract and incurred certaindition costs associated with this build-up.
As part of the agreement, we also agreed to ghasittistomer $6,000,000 of credits that are issseshles to this customer are made. Of the
total credits, $3,600,000 was issued during fi2€4l6 and $600,000 was issued in the each of tl@ndequarters of fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009,
and 2010. The agreement also contains other typioaisions, such as performance, quality andlfolént requirements that we must meet, a
requirement that we provide marketing support i tasstomer and a provision (standard in this mactufers vendor agreements) granting
customer the right to terminate the agreementatiare for any reason. In December 2009, this agesg was extended for an additional two-
year period to December 201

In July 2006, we entered into an agreement withstammer to become this customer’s primary suppli@ternators and starters. This
agreement was amended in January 2008 to extermbtitiact period through January 31, 2011. As giattiis amendment, we also agreed to
accelerate $2,300,000 of promotional allowancesigeal under this agreement. These promotional alfmes otherwise would have been
earned by the customer during the fourth quartdisoél 2008 and the first quarter of fiscal 2009.

The longer-term agreements both reflect and stremgbur customer relationships and business basgever, they also result in a continuing
concentration of our revenue sources among a fevelstomers and require a significant increasaumuse of working capital to build
inventory and increase production. This increaseduyrction causes significant increases in our itées, accounts payable and employee
base, and customer demands that we purchase #r@amufactured Core inventory can be a significaatrson our available capital. In
addition, the marketing and other allowances thatypically grant to our customers in connectiothwhese
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new or expanded relationships adversely impachéae-term revenues and associated cash flows fresetarrangements. However, we
believe this incremental business will improve ouerall liquidity and cash flow from operations oviene.
Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 odwistanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transadtiat prices deemed appropriate by management o expiration date governing the
period over which we can repurchase shares unigepithigram. We made no share repurchases durice) £610.

Capital Expenditures and Commitments

Our capital expenditures were $1,055,000 duringpfi2010. A significant portion of these expenditurelate to the purchase of equipment for
our manufacturing facilities. We expect our fis@ll1 capital expenditure to be approximately $2,000. We expect to use our working
capital and incur additional capital lease obligasi to finance these capital expenditures.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligai@md other commitments as of March 31, 2010, laaeffect such obligations could have
on our cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than 2t03 4t05 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years years
Capital Lease Obligations ( $ 1,450,001 $ 992,00( $ 415,00( $  43,00( $ =
Operating Lease Obligations ( 11,723,00 2,779,001 4,179,00! 3,245,00! 1,520,001
Term Loan 9,500,00! 2,000,00:! 4,000,00! 3,500,001 —
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ( — — — — —
Other Lon¢-Term Obligations (4 41,544,00 13,543,00 10,249,00 7,329,00! 10,423,00
Total $64,217,00 $19,314,00 $18,843,00 $14,117,00 $11,943,00

(1) Capital Lease Obligations represent amounts duerwapital leases for various types of machiney@mputer equipmer

(2) Operating Lease Obligations represent amadusfor rent under our leases for office and wawsk facilities in California, Tennessee,
Malaysia, Singapore and Mexic

(3) We are unable to reliably estimate the timdfhduture payments related to uncertain tax posgj therefore, $711,000 of income taxes
payable has been excluded from the table above eMemyfuture tax payment accruals related to uagetax positions are included in
our balance sheets, reduced by the associatedfetdstuction for state taxe

(4) Other Lon-Term Obligations represent commitments we have eétitain customers to provide marketing allowangeonsideratior
for long-term agreements to provide products over a defieeihd.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in ggerates and foreign currency exchange rates.éflagk is the potential loss arising from
adverse changes in market prices and rates, imgjudterest rates and foreign currency exchangsr&te do not enter into derivatives or o
financial instruments for trading or speculativegmses. As our overseas operations expand, ouserpto the risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations will continue to increase.

Our primary interest rate exposure relates to lea@sioutstanding under our New Credit Facility aemkivable discount programs, which have
interest costs that vary with interest rate movemsiebur $45,000,000 New Credit Facility bears ies¢iat variable base rates equal to the
LIBOR rate or the bank’s reference rate, at ourooptplus a margin rate dependant upon our mosttgcreported leverage ratio. This
obligation is the only variable rate facility wevgaoutstanding. At March 31, 2010, we had no an®aatstanding under our Revolving Loan.
Based upon the $9,500,000 balance of our Term bodmarch 31, 2010, an increase in interest ratd®mfwould have increased our annual
net interest expense by $95,000. In addition, &mhe$10,000,000 of accounts receivable we discoverta period of 180 days, a 1% increase
in interest rates would decrease our operatindteelsy $50,000.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange riséramt in our anticipated purchases and assetbadnilities denominated in currencies ot
than the U.S. dollar. We transact business in tfoesgn currencies which affect our operationg: kelaysian ringit, the Singapore dollar, and
the Mexican peso. Our total foreign assets werg3s/000 and $5,641,000 as of March 31, 2010 an,2@8pectively. In addition, as of
March 31, 2010 we had $369,000 due to our foreidosigliaries. As of March 31, 2009 we had $787,008 filom our foreign subsidiaries.
While these amounts are eliminated in consolidatiogy impact our foreign currency translation gaamd losses.

During fiscal 2010 and 2009, we experienced imnigtgains relative to our transactions involving alaysian ringit and the Singapore
dollar. Based upon our current operations relatetti¢se two currencies, a change of 10% in excheatge would result in an immaterial
change in the amount reported in our financiakstents.

Our exposure to currency risks has increased sicexpansion of our remanufacturing operatioridéxico. Since these operations will be
accounted for primarily in Mexican pesos, fluctoas in the value of the Mexican peso are expecédve a significant impact on our
reported results. To mitigate the risk of currefiogtuation between the U.S. dollar and the Mexipaso, in August 2005 we began to enter
into forward foreign currency exchange contractexohange U.S. dollars for Mexican pesos. The ¢xtewhich we use forward foreign
currency exchange contracts is periodically revidinelight of our estimate of market conditions @hd terms and length of anticipated
requirements. The use of derivative financial instents allows us to reduce our exposure to thethiskthe eventual net cash outflow resuli
from funding the expenses of the foreign operatisiishe materially affected by changes in excharates. These contracts generally expire in
a year or less. Any changes in the fair valuesuofforward foreign currency exchange contractsreflected in current period earnings. Based
upon our forward foreign currency exchange congraefated to the Mexican peso, an increase of 10&&éhange rates at March 31, 2010
would have increased our general and administratipenses by approximately $607,000. During fi2€4l0 and 2009, a gain of $1,565,000
and a loss of $1,194,000, respectively, were rambind general and administrative expenses dueetctibnge in the value of the forward
foreign currency exchange contracts subsequenttésieg into the contracts.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The information required by this item is set fartthe Consolidated Financial Statements, commenaimpage F-1 included herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Bcunting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and praesda ensure that the information required toibelased by the Company in the reports
that it files or submits under the Securities Exg@Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summasenddeported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissitas and forms and that such information is aadated and made known to the officers
who certify the Company’s financial reports anebtber members of senior management and the Bodbdt@dtors as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomainagement, including our Chief Executive Offigenjef Financial Officer, and Chief
Accounting Officer, we have conducted an evaluatibthe effectiveness of our disclosure controld procedures as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e). Based on this etirafyaur Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financ@fficer, and Chief Accounting Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures were effective as of March 31, 2010.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting issigned to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control may not prevent mésments. Further, an evaluation of the effectissrtd internal control may not detect
misstatements.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Untderdupervision and with the participation of mamaget, including our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Accoimg Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effeeness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the criteria estalelisim thelnternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisnevaluation, management concluded that the @orip internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of March 3Q10.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@al reporting as of March 31, 2010 has been addiy the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR.LTheir assessment is included in the accomparéamprt of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on internal control overdimcial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internarebover financial reporting during the fourth gtex ended March 31, 2010 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, the Company’s internal control ofi@ancial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemartdnnection with our next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

ltem 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners And Management and Related Stockholder Mattex

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The information required by this item is incorp@e@by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

a. Documents filed as part of this report:

(2) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingy 44

Consolidated Balance She: F-1

Consolidated Statements of Inco F-2

Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity F-3

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc F-4

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-5

(2) Schedules
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun S-1
(3) Exhibits:

Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Compa Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @am’s
Registration Statement on Form SB-2 declared éffiecin
March 22, 1994 (th“1994 Registration Statem”).

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-974@8)ated
effective on November 14, 1995 (the “1995 Regigirat
Statemer”).

3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thengmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the @am’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esthde
March 31, 1997 (th“1997 Form 1-K").

3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the @any’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year eshde
March 31, 1998 (th“1998 Form 1-K").

3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Cony's
proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SIEC
November 25, 200:

3.6 By-Laws of the Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the4.99
Registration Statemer

4.1 Specimen Certificate of the Company’s common stock Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the4.99
Registration Statemer

4.2 Form of Underwriter’'s common stock purchase warrant Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the4199
Registration Statemer

4.3 1994 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the4.99
Registration Statemer

4.4 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the4l
Registration Statemer

4.5 1994 Nor-Employee Director Stock Optic Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the @amy’s

Plan Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal yeadeah

March 31, 1995
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing
4.6 1996 Stock Option Pla Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the @amy’s
Registration Statement on Form S-2 (No. 333-37977)
declared effective on November 18, 1997 (the “1997
Registration Stateme”).
4.7 2003 Long Term Incentive Pl Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the @am’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with tliCSN
April 2, 2004.
4.8 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Brox
Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual $iudders:
Meeting.
4.9 Registration Rights Agreement among the Companytla®  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutiReport
investors identified on the signature pages thedsted as on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2007.
of May 18, 2007
4.10 Form of Warrant to be issued by the Company tostous Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport
in connection with the May 2007 Private Placen on Form K filed on May 18, 2007
10.1 Amendment to Lease, dated October 3, 1996, by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
between the Company and Golkar Enterprises, Lidting December 31, 1996 Form 10-Q.
to additional property in Torrance, Califorr
10.2 Lease Agreement, dated September 19, 1995, b Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to tB83
between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Compalaying Registration Statement.
to the Compar’s facility located in Torrance, Californ
10.3 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated agof A, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to tA871
1997, by and among the Company, Mel Marks, Richard ~ Form 10-K.
Marks and Vincent Quek relating to the acquisittdiMVR
and Unijoh
10.4 Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers a Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to tB87
directors Registration Statemer
10.5 Second Amendment to Lease, dated March 15, 2002, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to th8210-K.
between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Compalajing
to property in Torrance, Californ
10.6* Addendum to Vendor Agreement, dated May 8, 2004, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to th64£10-K.
between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the Comg
10.7 Form of Orbian Discount Agreement between the Cay, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to th8£21(-K.
and Orbian Corg
10.8 Form of Standard Industrial/lCommercial M-Tenant Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to th8£21(-K.
Lease, dated May 25, 2004, between the Company and
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd for property located at B&&ple
Avenue, Torrance, Californ
10.9 Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated October 28420 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport

among Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de CV, the Gamy
and Beatrix Flourie Geoffro
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

10.10 Amendment No. 3 to P-On-Scan Addendum, date Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport
August 22, 2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. bhad t on Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2006.
Company

10.11* Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agreement, dated Augfst 2 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CutriReport
2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and MotorcatsRdr on Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2006.
America, Inc.

10.12 Lease Agreement Amendment, dated October 12, : Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport
between the Company and Beatrix Flourie Gef on Form &K filed on October 20, 200

10.13 Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated ¢ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport
November 20, 2006, between Motorcar Parts of Anag on Form 8-K filed on November 27, 2006.
Inc. and Golkar Enterprises, L1

10.14 Securities Purchase Agreement among the Compantha  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport
investors identified on the signature pages thedsted as on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2007.
of May 18, 2007

10.15 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport
October 24, 2007, between Motorcar Parts of Ametita on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2007.
and Union Bank of California, N./

10.16 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutiReport
Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2008, betwedarbés  on Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2008.
Parts of America, Inc. and Union Bank of CaliformaA.

10.17 Revolving Note, dated as of January 14, 2008, exrelcoy Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. in favor of Uniomik of on Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2008.
California, N.A.

10.18 Letter Agreement between the Company and Mervyn Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport
McCulloch, dated February 6, 20 on Form K filed on February 6, 200t

10.19 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport
Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2008, between Matorc ~ on Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2008.
Parts of America, Inc. and Union Bank of CaliformaA.

10.20 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefi  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport
December 31, 2008, by and between the Company and  on Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009.
Selwyn Joffe

10.21 Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quéyt€urren
Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2009, between th Report on Form 10-Q filed February 9, 2009.
Company and Union Bank, N.,

10.22 Revolving Note, dated as of January 30, 2009, erelcoy Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quart€urren
the Company in favor of Union Bank, N. Report on Form 1-Q filed February 9, 200¢

10.23 Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Ci Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport
Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2009, between tbm@any  on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2009.
and Union Bank, N.A

10.24* Vendor Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009, beiwlee  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport

Company and AutoZone Parts, |i
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10.25* Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement, dated ¢ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutriReport
March 31, 2009, between the Company and AutoZomis,  on Form 8-K filed May 5, 2009.
Inc.

10.26 Sixth Amendment and Waiver to Amended and Restated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to td8210-K.
Credit Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2009, betitveen
Company and Union Bank, N.;

10.27 Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated C Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quart€urren
Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2009, between tmepany  Report on Form 10-Q filed August 10, 2009.
and Union Bank, N.A

10.28 Revolving Note, dated as of July 31, 2009, execbtethe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quart€urren
Company in favor of Union Bank, N.; Report on Form 1-Q filed August 10, 200¢

10.29 Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement, datedfas Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quart€urren
October 29, 2009, between the Company and UniotkkBan Report on Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2009.
N.A. and Branch Banking & Trust Compa

10.30 * Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of March 309z Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport
between the Company and AutoZone Parts, on Form &K/A filed on December 23, 200

10.31* Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement Addendum, d Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutriReport
as of March 31, 2009, between the Company and AarteZ  on Form 8-K/A filed on December 23, 2009.
Parts, Inc

10.32 * Master Vendor Agreement, dated as of April 01, 2009 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport
between the Company anc Reilly Automotive, Inc. on Form &K filed on January 13, 201

10.33 * Letter Agreement, dated as of April 01, 2009, betwthe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutiiReport
Company and ’Reilly Automotive, Inc. on Form &K filed on January 13, 201

10.34 * Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of April 0D Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CutriReport
between the Company anc Reilly Automotive, Inc. on Form &K filed on January 13, 201

10.35 First Amendment to the Revolving Credit and Ternaih Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport
Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2010, between the on Form 8-K filed on May 13, 2010.
Company and Union Bank, N.A. and Branch Banking &
Trust Compan

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the2

Form 1(-K.

211 List of Subsidiarie: Filed herewith

23.0 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking Filed herewith.
Ernst & Young LLP

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t Filed herewith.
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaiat t Filed herewith.

Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2
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31.3 Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuatat Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer, Chiefrfancial Filed herewith.

Officer and Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

* Portions of this exhibit have been granted confiidétreatment by the SE(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 18{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthaiized.

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC

Dated: June 14, 201 By: /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: June 14, 201 By: /s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has Imgned by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant in the capacities andhendates indicated:

/s/ Selwyn Joffe

Selwyn Joffe Chief Executive Officer and Directi
(Principal Executive Officer June 14, 201
/s/ David Lee
David Lee Chief Financial Office!
(Principal Financial Officer June 14, 201
/s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly Chief Accounting Office
(Principal Accounting Officer June 14, 201
s/ Mel Marks Director June 14, 201
Mel Marks
/sl Scott Adelson Director June 14, 2010
Scott Adelsor
/s/ Rudolph Borne Director June 14, 201
Rudolph Borne
/s/ Philip Gay Director June 14, 2010
Philip Gay
/s/ Duane Miller Director June 14, 2010
Duane Miller
/s/ Jeffrey Mirvis Director June 14, 201

Jeffrey Mirvis
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=mts of America, Inc.

We have audited Motorcar Parts of America, &md subsidiaries’ internal control over finanegporting as of March 31, 2010 based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafédmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Motorcar Parts ofekica, Inc. and subsidiariesianagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal
control over financial reporting, and for its assasnt of the effectiveness of internal control dugancial reporting included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Co@ver Financial Reporting. Our responsibility dsexpress an opinion on the company’
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstanceddlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoragsierance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intercahtrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Motorcar Parts of America, lland subsidiaries maintained, in all material eesg effective internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2010, based on the CO&€ria.

We also have audited, in accordance with thedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the consolida
balance sheet of Motorcar Parts of America, Ind. subsidiaries as of March 31, 2010 and 2009, heddlated consolidated statements of
income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows fahez the three years in the period ended Marct2810 of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.
and subsidiaries and our report dated June 14, egdi@ssed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 14, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=mts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. arbiliaries (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related consotidetegements of income, shareholders’ equity, aistt lows for the each of the three years
in the period ended March 31, 2010. Our audits msluded the financial statement schedule listethé index at Iltem 15(a)(2). These
financial statements and schedule are the respghitysid the Company’s management. Our respongipib to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamligUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial position
of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiageMarch 31, 2010 and 2009 and the consolidatadtseof their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghidlarch 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generaltcepted accounting principles. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement sckesduhen considered in relation to the basic cddat#d financial statements taken as a wt
presents fairly in all material respects the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc.’s internal control over financial mting as of March 31, 2010, based on criterial@isiaed in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegeted June 14, 2010, expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 14, 2010
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31,

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivabl— net (see Note €
Inventory— net
Inventory unreturne
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Plant and equipmer— net
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory depos
Long-term deferred income tax
Intangible asset— net
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued salaries and wag
Accrued worker' compensation clairr
Income tax payabl
Note payable
Revolving loar
Other current liabilitie:
Current portion of term loa
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Total current liabilities
Term loan, less current portit
Deferred core revent
Deferred gain on se-leasebacl
Other liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current por
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,000588res authorized; none issi
Series A junior participating preferred stock; patue $.01 per share, 20,000 shares authorize@ non
issuec
Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 20,000880:s authorized; 12,026,021 and 11,962,021
shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 201Q@0®@| respectivel
Additional paic-in capital
Additional paic-in capita-warrant
Accumulated other comprehensive I
Retained earning
Total shareholde’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

2010 2009
$ 1,210,000 $  452,00(
451,00 335,00(
— 11,121,00
31,547,00 27,923,00
3,924,001 4,708,001
8,391,001 8,277,001
2,735,001 1,355,001
48,258,00 54,171,00
12,693,00 13,997,00
67,957,00 62,821,00
25,768,00 24,451,00
951,00( 989,00(
6,304,001 2,564,001
1,549,001 595,00(
$163,480,00 $159,588,00
$ 31,603,00 $ 24,507,00
3,764,001 1,451,001
3,590,00! 3,162,001
1,574,001 1,895,001
678,00 1,158,00!
— 722,00(
— 21,600,00
697,00( 1,624,001
2,000,00! —
953,00( 1,621,001
44,859,00 57,740,00
7,500,001 —
6,061,001 5,934,001
319,00( 843,00(
676,00 587,00(
445,00( 1,401,001
59,860,00 66,505,00
120,00 120,00
92,792,00 92,459,00
1,879,001 1,879,001
(1,426,00)  (1,984,00)
10,255,00 609,00(
103,620,00 93,083,00
$163,480,00 $159,588,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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Net sales

Cost of goods sol
Gross profi
Operating expense
General and administrati\
Sales and marketir
Research and developm
Impairment of goodwil
Total operating expens
Operating incomi
Other expense (income
Gain on acquisitiol
Interest expens
Interest incom:
Income before income tax exper
Income tax expens

Net income

Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended March 31,

Weighted average number of shares outstan

Basic
Diluted

F-2

2010 2009 2008
$147,22500 $134,866,00 $133,337,00
105,898,00 95,319,000 _ 96,117,00
41,327,00 39,547,000  37,220,00
15,580,00 19,479,000  19,746,00

6,019,00! 5,242,001 3,456,001

1,421,00 1,993,00! 1,267,001

— 2,191,001 _
23,020,00 28,905,000 _ 24,469,00
18,307,00 10,642,00  12,751,00
(1,331,00) — _
4,710,001 4,215,001 5,514,001

— (19,000 (66,000
14,928,00 6,446,001 7,303,001

5,282,00! 2,589,001 2,696,001
$ 9,646,000 $ 3,857,000 $ 4,607,00
$ 0.8 $ 03z $ 0.4C
$ 0.8 $ 03z $ 0.3¢

11,988,69 11,995,662  11,522,32

12,116,61 12,086,12 _ 11,808,21

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Common Stock

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

For the Years Ended March 31,

Additional Paid-

Additional Paid-

Accumulated Other

Retained Earnings

in Capital in Capital Shareholder Note Comprehensive (Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Common Stock Warrants Receivable Income (Loss) Deficit) Total Income (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 20( 8,373,12: $ 84,000 $ 56,241,00 $ — $ (682,000 $ 40,00( $ (7,855,001 $ 47,828,00
Exercise of option 55,52¢ 1,00( 262,00( — — — — 263,00(
Tax benefit from employee stock
options exercise — — 162,00( — — — — 162,00(
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po — — (44,000 — — — — (44,000
Compensation recognized under
employee stock plar — — 1,052,001 — — — — 1,052,001
Common stock and warrants issued
upon PIPE offering, net of
expense: 3,641,90! 36,00( 34,990,000 1,879,001 — — — 36,905,00
Unrealized loss on investments, net
tax — — — — — (120,001) — (120,000 $ (120,001)
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 440,00( — 440,00( 440,00(
Net income — — — — — — 4,607,001 4,607,001 4,607,001
Comprehensive Incon $ 4,927,001
Balance at March 31, 20( 12,070,55 121,00( 92,663,00! 1,879,001 (682,000 360,00( (3,248,00i) 91,093,00
Compensation recognized under
employee stock plar — — 508,00( — — — — 508,00(
Retirement of common stock in
satisfaction of shareholder note
receivable (108,539 (1,000) (712,000 — 682,00( — — (31,000
Unrealized loss on investments, net of
tax — — — — — (64,000 — (64,000 $ (64,000)
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — (2,280,001 — (2,280,001 (2,280,00i)
Net income - - — — — — 3,857,001 3,857,001 3,857,001
Comprehensive Incon $ 1,513,000
Balance at March 31, 20( 11,962,02 120,00( 92,459,00 1,879,001 — (1,984,001 609,00( 93,083,00
Compensation recognized under
employee stock plar — — 136,00( — — — — 136,00(
Exercise of option 64,00( — 152,00( — — — — 152,00(
Tax benefit from employee stock
options exercise — — 69,000 — — — — 69,00(
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po — — (24,000 — — — — (24,000
Unrealized gain on investments, net
tax — — — — — 80,00( — 80,00( $ 80,00(
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 478,00( — 478,00( 478,00(
Net income — — — — — — 9,646,001 9,646,001 9,646,001
Comprehensive Incon $ 10,204,00
Balance at March 31, 20: 12,026,02 $120,00( $ 92,792,00! $ 1,879,001 $ = $ (1,426,001 $ 10,255,00! $103,620,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financiéstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31,

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigsal by (used in) operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of intangible asse
Amortization of deferred gain on s-leasebacl
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Provision for inventory reserwvi
Provision for (recovery of) customer payment dipercies
Provision for doubtful accoun
Deferred income taxe
Shar+based compensation expel
Gain on acquisitiol
Impairment of goodwil
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po
Loss (gain) on redemption of sh-term investmen
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Inventory unreturne
Income tax receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Income tax payabl
Deferred core revent
Long-term accounts receivak
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory deposi
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of plant and equipm
Purchase of business
Change in short term investme

Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under revolving loe
Repayments under revolving lo
Proceeds from term lo¢
Repayments of term lo¢
Deferred financing cos
Payments on capital lease obligatit
Exercise of stock optior
Excess tax benefit from employee stock optionsased
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and war
Stock issuance cos
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase (decrease) in ci
Cash— Beginning of yea
Cash— End of yeal

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid (received) during the period
Interest
Income taxe:
Non-cash investing and financing activitit

2010 2009 2008
$ 9,646,000 $ 3,857,000 $ 4,607,001
3,238,001 3,136,001 2,960,001
644,00 326,00 —
(524,000() (521,000) (518,000()
35,00( — —
878,00 36,00 1,017,001
182,00( 915,00 (294,00()
898,00 225,00 124,00
(70,000 (2,252,000 1,571,001
136,00 508,00 1,052,001
(1,331,00) — —
— 2,191,001 —
24,00( — 44.,00(
5,00( — (211,00()
13,00( 4,00 45,00(
8,918,001 (9,789,00) (1,127,001
(3,936,001) 6,833,001 (1,103,00)
784,00 (584,000) (238,00()
— — 1,675,001
(1,054,00) 369,00 296,00
(832,000 207,00 (301,00()
9,021,000  (10,179,00)  (10,839,00)
(518,000() 870,00 137,00(
127,00( 3,007,001 1,352,001
— 767,00( —
(5,692,00)  (9,894,00)  (9,082,00i)
(1,317,00)  (1,974,00i) (860,000()
(928,00() 864,00 (346,00()
18,347,000  (11,078,00)  (10,039,00)
(1,055,00)  (2,317,00)  (1,962,00)
(2,622,000 (7,462,000 —
11,00( (67,000 486,00
(3,666,00)  (9,846,00)  (1,476,00i)
31,600,00  52,310,00 48,700,00
(53,200,00)  (30,710,00)  (71,500,00)
10,000,00 — —
(500,000) — —
(414,00() — —
(1,630,00)  (1,868,00) (1,664,001
152,00( — 262,00
69,00 — 162,00(
(24,000) — (44,000)
— —  40,061,00
— — (3,156,001
(13,947,00)  19,732,00 12,821,00
24,00( (291,00() 280,00
758,00 (1,483,00) 1,586,001
452,00 1,935,001 349,00
$ 1,210,000 $ 452000 $ 1,935,00
$ 4,568,000 $ 4,048,000 $ 5,421,001
5,636,001 3,404,001 (1,344,00)



Settlement of accounts receivable in connectioh witrchase of busine
Property acquired under capital lei

Holdback on purchase of busines

Note payable on purchase of busin

Retirement of common stock in satisfaction of shalger note receivab

$ 1,123,00

357,00(
800,00(
722,00(
682,00(

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Background and Organization

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidis(ige “Company” or “MPA") remanufacture and distrie alternators and starters for import
and domestic cars and light trucks. These replanepaets are sold for use on vehicles after initetlicle purchase. These automotive parts are
sold to automotive retail chain stores and wareddalistributors throughout the United States anda@arand to major automobile
manufacturers.

The Company obtains used alternators and stacemsnonly known as Used Cores, primarily from itstomers as trade-ins. It also purchases
Used Cores from vendors (core brokers). The custogrant credit to the consumer when the usedipagturned to them, and the Compan
turn provides a credit to the customers upon rettluthe Company. These Used Cores are an essexatietial needed for the remanufacturing
operations. The Company has remanufacturing, wasehg and shipping/receiving operations for alteoreaand starters in Mexico, Californ
Singapore and Malaysia. In addition, the Compailizes third party warehouse distribution center&dison, New Jersey and Springfield,
Oregon.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in one business segment ptitsutae guidance provided under the Financialodioting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC").

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiewtade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina,and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
MVR Products Pte. Ltd., Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., Motor&arts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Motorcar Part€afiada, Inc. All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etetdina

Cash

The Company maintains cash balances in local ccigsnn Singapore and Malaysia and in local and doBar currencies in Mexico for use
by the facilities operating in those foreign coigdr The balances in these foreign accounts trigsiato U.S. dollars at March 31, 2010 and
2009 were $569,000 and $198,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is developeskHaupon several factors including customer crpditity, historical write-off experience
and any known specific issues or disputes whichted of the balance sheet date. Accounts receieablwritten off only when all collection
attempts have failed. The Company does not requoifateral for accounts receivable.

The Company has receivable discount programs that heen established with certain customers andréspective banks. Under these
programs, the Company has the option to sell tbastomers’ receivables to those banks at a disdourg agreed upon at the time the
receivables are sold. Once the customer choosehwlhistanding invoices are going to be made avaiffr discounting, the Company can
accept or decline the bundle of invoices providéte receivable discount programs are non-recoarsgfunds cannot be reclaimed by the
customer or its bank after the related invoiceshaeen discounted.

I nventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process anchtihrecore value of finished goods.
Used Cores, the Used Core value of work in proaedsthe Remanufactured Core portion
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of finished goods are classified as long-term doventory as described below under the caption f-term Core Inventory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid,
and is based upon the direct costs of materiabanallocation of labor and variable and fixed oeath costs. The cost of non-core inventory is
evaluated at least quarterly during the fiscal yeat adjusted as necessary to reflect current lofveost or market levels. These adjustments
are determined for individual items of inventonytivim each of the three classifications of non-dowentory as follows:

. Non-core raw materials are recorded at average costhvidibased on the actual purchase price of ratenats on hand. The avera
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to
finished goods during the production proce

. Non-core work in process is in various stages of prtdogcis on average 50% complete and is valued% 6f the cost of a finishe
good. Nor-core work in process inventory historically compsgdess than 3% of the total 1-core inventory balanc

. Finished goods cost includes the average casbmfcore raw materials and allocations of laborearihble and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed ovetheasts are determined based on the average astuaf the production facilities
over the prior twelve months which approximatesmaircapacity. This method prevents the distortiondsts that would occur during
short periods of abnormally low or high productitmaddition, the Company excludes certain unatled@verhead such as severance
costs, duplicative facility overhead costs, andlage from the calculation and expenses them d@egepsts. For the years ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009, costs of approximatel%4,000 and $2,019,000, respectively, were consitlabnormal and thus
excluded from the cost calculation and chargecctliréo cost of sales

The Company records an allowance for potentiallyesx and obsolete inventory based upon recentlsatesy, the quantity of inventory on-
hand, and a forecast of potential use of the irorgniThe Company reviews inventory on a monthlyidésidentify excess quantities and part
numbers that are experiencing a reduction in demargeneral, part numbers with quantities représgra one to three-year supply are
partially reserved for at rates based upon managesrjadgment and consistent with historical ra#esy part numbers with quantities
representing more than a three-year supply arevesdor at a rate that considers possible scradigunidation values and may be as high as
100% of cost if no liquidation market exists foe thart.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are @lgeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, thexrdfe revised if there are changes in the overatket for the Company’s products or
market changes that, in management’s judgment,dtrtha Company'’s ability to sell or liquidate pdiafly excess or obsolete inventory.

The Company records vendor discounts as a reduatimventories that are recognized as a redudtiaiost of sales as the inventories are
sold.
Inventory Unreturne(

Inventory unreturned represents the Compaegtimate, based on historical data and prosgeictiormation provided directly by the custon

of finished goods shipped to customers that the fizmy expects to be returned after the balance sladetBecause all cores are classified
separately as long term assets, the inventory ummed balance includes only the added unit valdenighed goods. The return rate is
calculated based on expected returns within thmaboperating cycle of one year. As such, the edlamounts are classified in current assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans¢h@Company'’s finished goods inventory.
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Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:
. Used Cores purchased from core brokers and hahémtory at the Compa’s facilities,
. Used Cores returned by the Comg's customers and held in inventory at the Com’s facilities,

. Used Cores returned by e-users to customers but not yet returned to the @ompre classified as Remanufactured Cores uetjl
are physically received by the Compa

. Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabthe Compar’s facilities; anc

. Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of finished goods sold to the customer.tRese Remanufactured Cores,
Company expects the finished good containing thmdeifactured Core to be returned under the Compayerieral right of return
policy or a similar Used Core to be returned toGmenpany by the customer, in each case, for ci

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®tital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficieaent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average histbpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichdhera less liquid market. The Company must putiasse Used Cores from core brokers
because its customers do not have a sufficientlgubphese newer Used Cores available for the eadange program.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainezbre broker transactions and are valued basex/erage purchase price. The avel
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent altdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@zwds in subsequent periods even as the
source of these Used Cores shifts to the core egehprogram.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowfecast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, the Company uses core
broker price lists to assess whether Used Corescasteds Used Core market value on an item byligesis. The primary reason for the
insufficient recent purchases is that the Compdrigiins most of its Used Core inventory from thetaoer core exchange program.

The Company classifies all of its core inventoasdong-term assets. The determination of the teng-classification is based on its view that
the value of the cores is not consumed or realizedsh during the Company’s normal operating ¢ywlgch is one year for most of the cores
recorded in inventory. According to guidance preddinder the FASB ASC, current assets are defigédssets or resources commonly
identified as those which are reasonably expeadsttrealized in cash or sold or consumed duriaghtirmal operating cycle of the business.”
The Company does not believe that core inventonbgh the Company classifies as long-term, aresgored because the credits issued upon
the return of Used Cores offset the amounts inebigben the Remanufactured Cores included in fimigfeods were sold. The Company does
not expect the core inventories to be consumedttargithe Company does not expect to realize ceh jts relationship with a customer er

a possibility that the Company considers remotethas existing long-term customer agreements astdrital experience.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofihed goods sold, the Compasgustomer will not send the Company a Used Coobtain
the credit the Company offers under its core exghgrogram. Therefore, based on the Company’sridatestimate, the Company
derecognizes the core value for these finished gopadn sale, as the Company believes they havedmesumed and the Company has
realized cash.
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The Company realizes cash for only the core exabaa@nggram shortfall of approximately 4.5%. Thisrstadl represents the historical
difference between the number of finished goodgmd to customers and the number of Used Coresesttio the Company by customers.
The Company does not realize cash for the remajmimtjon of the cores because the credits issued thge return of Used Cores offset the
amounts invoiced when the Remanufactured Coreaded in finished goods were sold. The Company doegxpect to realize cash for the
remaining portion of these Remanufactured Coreitstelationship with a customer ends, a podityhtihat the Company considers remote
based on existing long-term customer agreement$iatatical experience.

For these reasons, the Company concluded thatnibie appropriate to classify core inventory agierm assets.

Longterm Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmtssthe value of Remanufactured Cores the Comparghased from customers, which are
held by the customers and remain on the custorpeggiises. The purchase is made through the isswdimcedits against that customer’s
receivables either on a one-time basis or ovegagea-upon period. The credits against the custemexeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously ksttald with the customer. At the same time, the Gamy records the long-term core
inventory deposit for the Remanufactured Corestmsed at its cost, determined as noted under Lenng-<€ore Inventory. The long-term core
inventory deposit is stated at the lower of cosharket. The cost is established at the time ofrn@saction based on the then current cost,
determined as noted under Long-term Core Inveniing. difference between the credit granted anddise of the long-term core inventory
deposit is treated as a sales allowance reducinue. When the purchases are made over an agoeaddariod, the long-term core inventory
deposit is recorded at the same time the credisiged to the customer for the purchase of the Rafaetured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reidiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeridosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmeed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarfertured Cores is reviewed to determine that ffggegate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repoptargpd. The Company evaluates the cost of conggmting the aggregate long-term core
inventory deposit account each quarter. If the Camygdentifies any permanent reduction in eithernbmber or the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the austdocation, the Company will record a reductionte long-term core inventory deposit
account during that period.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which measures deferred income tdxeapplying enacted statutory rate:
effect at the balance sheet date to the differebetgeen the tax basis of assets and liabilitielsthair reported amounts in the financial
statements. The resulting asset or liability isiatdid to reflect changes in the tax laws as theyro@ valuation allowance is provided to
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likedy thot that a portion of the deferred tax asskiwet be realized.

The primary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision are (i) the current liability or refundelfor federal, state and foreign income
taxes and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&rred income tax asset, including the effe@rmf change in the valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tippCompany ability to generate sufficient future taxableante. In evaluating this abilit
management considers the Company’s long-term agnetsmwith each of its major customers that expineagous dates through March 2019.
Based on management's forecast of the Companylsdatperating results, management believes timtribre likely than not that future
taxable income will be sufficient to realize theasaded deferred tax assets. Management periodicathpares its forecasts to actual results,
and there can be no assurance that the forecastalsrwill be achieved.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less adateduepreciation and amortization. The cost ditaahs and improvements are capitalized,
while maintenance and repairs are charged to egpghsn incurred. Depreciation and amortizationpaoxided on a straight-line basis in
amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreeiassets to
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operations over their estimated service lives. Ntsaly and equipment are amortized over a range frewen to ten years. Office equipment
and fixtures are amortized over a range from thwden years. Leasehold improvements are amortizedthe lives of the respective leases or
the service lives of the leasehold improvementscindver is shorter. Amortization of assets recongieder capital leases is included in
depreciation expense.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price dveifair value of identifiable net assets acquiretusiness combinations. The Company does
not amortize goodwill but evaluates goodwill forgairment on an annual basis or more frequentlyehés or circumstances occur that would
indicate a reduction in fair value of the Compafych indicators include, but are not limited togmg or circumstances such as a significant
adverse change in the business climate, unantdpaimpetition, a loss of key personnel, advergal ler regulatory developments, or a
significant decline in the market price in the C@np's common stock. In addition, the Company idedia single reporting unit (the
Company itself) as it had not identified any comgrats of the Company beneath the one operating segiescribed above.

I ntangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets other than goodndlffinite-lived and amortized on a straight-lbeesis over their respective useful lives, and
are analyzed for impairment when and if indicatafrsnpairment exist.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costsried to obtain financing. These fees and costam@tized using the straight-line method
over the terms of the related loans and are indimlénterest expense in the Company’s Consolid&tatements of Income.

Foreign Currency Translation

For financial reporting purposes, the functionarency of the foreign subsidiaries is the localrency. The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into the reporting cayr€b).S. dollar) at the exchange rate in effe¢hatbalance sheet date, while revenues and
expenses are translated at average exchange uateg the year. The accumulated foreign currenagdiation adjustment is presented as a
component of comprehensive income or loss in thesGlidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when performanteeb@ompany is complete and all of the followingezia have been met:

. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e;

. Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

. The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,

. Collectibility is reasonably assure

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippgaint, revenue is recognized on the date of shiinter products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the egtthmatactual date of delivery. The Company incluslépping and handling charges in its
gross invoice price to customers and classifiesdtad amount as revenue. Shipping and handlints@re recorded as cost of sales.

Unit value revenue is recorded based on the Companrice list, net of applicable discounts and aloees. The Company allows customel
return slow moving and other inventory. The Compprovides for such returns of
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inventory by reducing revenue and cost of salesheunit value of goods sold that are expectdzbtoeturned based on a historical return
analysis and information obtained from customersuaburrent stock levels.

The Company accounts for revenues and cost of salasnet-of-core-value basis. Management hasrdited that the Company’s business
practices and contractual arrangements resultproapmately 96% of the remanufactured alternatois starters sold being replaced by similar
Used Cores sent back for credit by customers utge€ompany’s core exchange program. Accordingly,Gompany excludes the value of
Remanufactured Cores from revenue.

When the Company ships a product, it recognizeshbéigation to accept a similar Used Core sent hader the core exchange program by

recording a contra receivable account based upR#manufactured Core price agreed upon by the &ayrgnd its customer. Upon receip

a Used Core, the Company grants the customer & beeed on the Remanufactured Core price billetirastores the Used Core to on-hand
inventory.

When the Company ships a product, it invoices oedastomers for the Remanufactured Core portiahefproduct at full Remanufactured
Core sales price. For these Remanufactured Ctre&dmpany recognizes core revenue based uporiaratesof the rate at which the
Company’s customers will pay cash for Remanufadt@eres in lieu of sending back similar Used Cdoesredits under the Company’s core
exchange program.

In addition, the Company recognizes revenue reletd&temanufactured Cores originally sold at a naingmice and not expected to be repla
by a similar Used Core under the core exchangergnogUnlike the full price Remanufactured Cores, @ompany only recognizes revenue
from nominally priced Remanufactured Cores not etgrto be replaced by a similar Used Core serk bader the core exchange program
when the Company believes it has met all of thiefahg criteria:

. The Company has a signed agreement with the custmwering the nominally priced Remanufactured Gaoret expected to t
replaced by a similar Used Core sent back undetdhe exchange program. This agreement must spbefgumber of
Remanufactured Cores its customer will pay caslnftieu of sending back a similar Used Core aralihsis on which the nominally
priced Remanufactured Cores are to be valued (rflyrtha average price per Remanufactured Core Istipd in the agreemen

. The contractual date for reconciling the Compamgcords and customer’s records of the numbeomiimally priced Remanufactured
Cores not expected to be replaced by a similar \@s#d sent back under the core exchange programbraus the current or a prior
period.

. The reconciliation of the nominally priced Remamtitaed Cores must be completed and agreed to byugtemer
. The amount must be billed to the custon

The Company has agreed in the past and may irutheefagree to buy back Remanufactured Cores. ifleeathce between the credit granted
and the cost of the Remanufactured Cores boughtibdreated as a sales allowance reducing revekaia.result of the increasing level of
Remanufactured Core buybacks, the Company nowgletee revenue from these customers until theme ixpectation that the sales
allowances associated with Remanufactured Coredulgfrom these customers will offset Remanufadt@ere revenues that would
otherwise be recognized once the criteria notede@bave been met. At March 31, 2010 and 2009, Refaetured Core revenue of $6,061,
and $5,934,000, respectively, was deferred.

Marketing Allowances

The Company records the cost of all marketing alloges provided to its customers. Such allowana#dsde sales incentives and concessions.
Voluntary marketing allowances related to a sireglehange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues

are recorded or when such incentives are offerélierOnarketing allowances, which may only be appéigainst future purchases, are recorded
as a reduction to revenues in accordance with edsté set forth in the relevant contract. Saleentige amounts are recorded based on the
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value of the incentive provided. See “Note 13. Catmrants and Contingencies” for a more complete metsan of all marketing allowances.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs asrettuAdvertising expenses for the fiscal years dridarch 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were
$212,000, $227,000 and $95,000, respectively.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividieigincome by the weighted average number of stedresmmon stock outstanding during
the period. Diluted net income per share inclutieseffect, if any, from the potential exercise onwersion of securities, such as stock options
and warrants, which would result in the issuanc@afemental shares of common stock.

The following presents a reconciliation of basid ailuted net income per share.

Years Ended March 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net income $ 9,646,00! $ 3,857,00 $ 4,607,001
Basic share 11,988,69 11,995,62 11,522,32
Effect of dilutive stock options and warral 127,92: 90,50¢ 285,89«
Diluted share! 12,116,61 12,086,12 11,808,21
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.8C $ 0.32 $ 0.4C
Diluted $ 0.8C $ 0.32 $ 0.3¢

The effect of dilutive options and warrants exckde253,982 shares subject to options and 546 J28@s subject to warrants with exercise
prices ranging from $5.00 to $15.00 per sharelferyear ended March 31, 2010 and 1,249,900 shalbgscs to options and 546,283 shares
subject to warrants with exercise prices rangiognfs6.11 to $15.00 per share for the year endediMat, 2009 — all of which were anti-
dilutive. The effect of dilutive options and wartaexcludes 294,039 shares subject to options 46283 shares subject to warrants with
exercise prices ranging from $11.50 to $19.13 paresfor the year ended March 31, 2008 — all ofcvhiere anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assus it affect the reported amounts in the conatdilifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffenfrihose estimates. On an on-going basis, the Coympaaiuates its estimates, including
those related to the carrying amount of properigntpand equipment; valuation and return allowarioeseceivables, inventories, and deferred
income taxes; accrued liabilities; and litigatiordalisputes.

The Company uses significant estimates in the ttion of sales returns. These estimates are lmsé¢ite Company’s historical return rates
and an evaluation of estimated sales returns fimeniic customers.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tztion of the lower of cost or market value of Ialegm core inventory.
The Company’s calculation of inventory reserve®lags significant estimates. The basis for the imory reserve is a comparison of inventory
on hand to historical production usage or saleamek.
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The Company records its liability for self-insunedrkers’ compensation by including an estimatehefltability associated with total claims
incurred and reported as well as an estimate ofabdities associated with incurred, but not repd, claims determined by applying the
Company’s historical claims development factortsoeistimate of the liabilities associated with imed and reported claims.

The Company uses significant estimates in the ttion of its income tax provision or benefit bying forecasts to estimate whether it will
have sufficient future taxable income to realizedéferred tax assets. There can be no assurdratese Company’s taxable income will be
sufficient to realize such deferred tax assets.

The Company uses significant estimates in the engoalculation of potential liabilities from uncairt tax positions that are more likely than
not to occur.

A change in the assumptions used in the estimatesafes returns, inventory reserves and incomestaguld result in a difference in the rel:
amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidatechfitz statements.

Financial I nstruments

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investmextcounts receivable, accounts payable and attaldities approximate their fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instruméitts.carrying amounts of the revolving loan, ter@n@nd other long-term liabilities
approximate their fair value based on current ridesistruments with similar characteristics.

Stock Options and Share-Based Payments

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company began using tiodified prospective application method of tréosifor all its stockbased compensati
plans. The modified prospective application metbbttansition requires that stock-based compensatigpense be recorded for all new and
unvested stock options that are ultimately expetdeast as the requisite service is rendered #anil 1, 2006 forward.

In November 2005, the FASB issued guidance, whicliges an elective alternative transition methmdcalculating the pool of excess tax
benefits available to absorb tax deficiencies raty subsequent to the adoption date. The Comipashgignificant vested options on the
adoption date of the guidance and therefore haseeléo compute its APIC pool in accordance wiik guidance. The excess tax benefits for
the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008rasemqted as a cash outflow from operations andfaioflow from financing activities.

The fair value of stock options used to computelstzased compensation expense, which is refleategpiorted results is estimated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which was depeld for use in estimating the fair value of tradptions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. This model requiresitipait of subjective assumptions including the etee volatility of the underlying stock and
the expected holding period of the option. Thedgesiive assumptions are based on both historiwdogher information. Changes in the
values assumed and used in the model can mateafédigt the estimate of fair value. Options to e 12,000, 84,000 and 58,000 shares of
common stock were granted during the years endedhvii, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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The table below summarizes the Black-Scholes oggfaring model assumptions used to derive the wethverage fair value of the stock
options granted during the periods noted.

Years Ended March 31,

2010 2009 2008
Weighted average risk free interest 1 1.32% 2.61% 4.08%
Weighted average expected holding period (ye 4.9C 5.1t 3.1¢
Weighted average expected volatil 25.1% 40.9%% 24.7%
Weighted average expected dividend y —% —% —%
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 1.0¢ $ 2.0¢ $ 2.6

Credit Risk

The majority of the Company’s sales are to leadingpmotive after-market parts suppliers. Managerheli¢ves the credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable is limited due to the gamy’s credit evaluation process and the natuits @ustomers. However, should the
Company’s customers experience significant cask fimmblems, the Company’s financial position arglites of operations could be materially
and adversely affected, and the maximum amourdssf that would be incurred would be the outstandéegivable balance, Used Cores
expected to be returned by customer, and the wdltlee Remanufactured Cores held at customersidocat March 31, 2010.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicenembers of management. The plan allows ppatits to defer salary, bonuses and
commissions. The assets of the plan are heldrinmsaand are subject to the claims of the Compageteeral creditors under federal and state
laws in the event of insolvency. Consequently tthst qualifies as a Rabbi trust for income taxposes. The plan’s assets consist primarily of
mutual funds and are classified as “available &e.8 The investments are recorded at market valith,any unrealized gain or loss recorded
as other comprehensive income or loss in sharefgldguity. Adjustments to the deferred compensatibligation are recorded in operating
expenses. The Company redeemed $70,000 of shortrigestments for the payment of deferred compénséabilities during the year ended
March 31, 2010, and did not redeem any short-terrastments during the year ended March 31, 2008 calrying value of plan assets was
$451,000 and $335,000, and deferred compensatiagatibn was $451,000 and $335,000 at March 31024d 2009, respectively. During
the year ended March 31, 2010 an expense of $139%a6 recorded related to the deferred compenspléon while a reduction in expense of
$92,000 was recorded during the year ended MarcREIO.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

Comprehensive income or loss is defined as thegehamequity during a period resulting from trartgats and other events and circumstances
from non-owner sources. The Company’s total comgmeive income or loss consists of net unrealizedrire or loss from foreign currency
translation adjustments and unrealized gains ae®®sn short-term investments. The Company hasmqegs comprehensive income or loss on
the Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted the new guidance issued yABS on fair value measurements and disclosurealféinancial assets and liabilities
April 1, 2008. This guidance defined fair valuetlas price that would be received to sell an asspail to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the areagent date. It also established a framework feasuring fair value in accordance with
GAAP and expanded the disclosures required fonine measurements. On April 1, 2009, the Compaiopted this guidance for all non-
financial assets and non-financial liabilities, eptcfor items that are recognized or disclose@iatvilue in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, which did not have any materigdast on the Company'’s financial condition, resaftsperations or cash flows.
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New Accounting Pronouncements
Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued new guidance on tsattnent of subsequent events which is intendedtédbksh general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that oefter the balance sheet date but before finantEg¢ments are issued or are available to be
issued. Specifically, this new guidance sets ftrthperiod after the balance sheet date duringtwinanagement of a reporting entity should
evaluate events or transactions that occurreddtantial recognition or disclosure in the finandtdtements, the circumstances under which ar
entity should recognize events or transactionsdbatirred after the balance sheet date in its éiahstatements, and the disclosures that an
entity should make about events or transactionsot@urred after the balance sheet date. This neslagce was effective for fiscal years and
interim periods ended after June 15, 2009, and beuspplied prospectively. The adoption of thiddgaice on June 30, 2009 did not have any
material impact on the Company’s consolidated faf@position and results of operations.

In February 2010, subsequent to the Company’s amopf the new guidance discussed above, the FASEed updated guidance on
subsequent events amending the May 2009 guidamuzerihis amended guidance, SEC filers are no lomggiired to disclose the date
through which subsequent events have been evalimatejinally issued and revised financial statetseThis guidance was effective
immediately and the Company adopted these newnegents upon issuance of this guidance.

Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance onrélagntent of transfers of financial assets whictmiglates the concept of a “qualifying
special-purpose entity,” changes the requirememtddrecognizing financial assets, and require#tiaddl disclosures in order to enhance
information reported to users of financial statetaday providing greater transparency about trassféfinancial assets, including
securitization transactions, and an entity’s caritig involvement in and exposure to the risks egldb transferred financial assets. This new
guidance is effective as of the beginning of aitgatfirst fiscal year that begins after Novemidér, 2009. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this guidance on April 1, 2010 to hang material impact on its consolidated financi@ipon and results of operations.

Consolidation of Variance Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whigktnasithe consolidation guidance applicable to bégimterest entities and is effective as
of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal ye&at begins after November 15, 2009. The Compang doeexpect the adoption of this guidance
on April 1, 2010 to have any material impact orcii@solidated financial position and results ofraiens.

Accounting Standards Codificatio

In June 2009, the FASB approved the FASB ASC asitigde source of authoritative, nongovernmentalMBAexcept for rules and
interpretive releases of the SEC, which are sowtasthoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. All etthon-grandfathered, n@EC accountin
literature not included in the ASC has become nathitative. The ASC is effective for financiabments for interim or annual reporting
periods ending after September 15, 2009. The Cowpegan to use the new guidelines and numberingmsygrescribed by the ASC when
referring to GAAP during the second quarter ofdis2010. As the ASC was not intended to changdter existing GAAP, it did not have any
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial fp@siand results of operations.
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Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu

In August 2009, the FASB issued new guidance toigeoclarification for the fair value measuremehtiabilities in circumstances in which a
guoted price in an active market for an identicility is not available. This guidance is effeetifor the first reporting period, including
interim periods, beginning after issuance. The &dopf this guidance on October 1, 2009 did nathany material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of agiens.

In January 2010, the FASB issued an update whighimes new disclosures for transfers in and oltesfel 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy and expanded disclosures for activityguel 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The updatealrifies existing disclosures regarding the
level of disaggregation for disclosure and discteswabout inputs and valuation techniques. Thedisglosures and clarifications of existing
disclosures are effective for interim and annupbréng periods beginning after December 15, 200 adoption of this update on January 1,
2010 did not have any impact on the Company’s dateted financial position and results of operasiofihe disclosures regarding certain
Level 3 activity are effective for fiscal years bmgng after December 15, 2010. The Company doesxmect the adoption of this guidance on
April 1, 2011 to have any material impact on itesolidated financial position and results of opers.

3. Acquisitions

On August 14, 2009, the Company completed the aitiui of certain assets of Reliance Automotive, I{iReliance”), a privately held
remanufacturer of alternators and starters basgash Berlin, Connecticut. These products are gotter the Reliance™ brand name. The
acquisition was consummated pursuant to a defenjprchase agreement dated August 14, 2009. The&vonbelieves the acquisition of
Reliance continues an acquisition strategy desigmédrther enhance the Company’s market shareoittiNAmerica, including the addition of
a major automotive retail customer.

The purchase price was allocated to the assetéradaqand liabilities assumed based on their esgéhédir values at the acquisition date. The
estimated fair value of the net assets acquiredesad the fair value of the consideration transteaf $3,023,000. After reassessing the
identification of assets acquired and liabilitiss@med, the $1,331,000 excess of the fair valtleeofiet assets acquired over the purchase price
was recorded as a gain on acquisition in the Cogip@onsolidated Statement of Income during the gealed March 31, 2010. The tax
impact of the gain on acquisition of $544,000 uded as a reduction to long-term deferred inctameassets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at March 31, 2010. Acquisition related ctimtshe year ended March 31, 2010 of $191,000rakided in general and administrative
expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statemdntofme. Pro forma information is not presentethasassets, results of operations and
purchase price of Reliance were not significartheoCompany’s consolidated financial position @ults of operations.

The following table reflects the final allocatiohtbe purchase price:

Consideration

Cash consideratic $ 1,900,00!
Settlement of accounts receiva 1,123,001
Total $ 3,023,001
Purchase price allocatior

Plant and equipme! $ 145,00(
Trademarks 185,00(
Customer relationshiy 4,053,001
Non-compete agreemer 146,00(
Current liabilities (175,000
Fair value of net assets acquil 4,354,00!
Gain on acquisitiol $(1,331,001)
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On May 16, 2008, the Company completed the acdprsitf certain assets of Automotive Importing Maaetfiring, Inc. (“AIM”), specifically

its operation which produced new and remanufactalitnators and starters for imported and domestésenger vehicles. These products are
sold under Talo®, Xtreme® and other brand names. The acquisition was constmdnparrsuant to a definitive purchase agreemetagdda

April 24, 2008.

The acquisition of AIM expanded the Compangustomer base and product line, including thetiaddof business in heavy duty alternator
starter applications. The following table reflettts final allocation of the purchase price:

Consideration and acquisition costt

Cash consideratic $3,727,00
Purchase price hold ba 500,00(
Acquisition cost: 437,00(
Total $4,664,00!
Purchase price allocatior

Accounts receivable, net of allowanc $ (221,000
Inventory 2,853,00!
Trademarks 212,00(
Customer relationshir 1,441,001
Non-compete agreemer 50,00(
Goodwill 329,00(
Total purchase pric $4,664,00!

The definitive purchase agreement was amended gnli8la2008. The amendment provided for an additiooatingent consideration of up to
$400,000 to AIM if the net sales to certain custmsvexceed an agreed upon dollar threshold duriegémniod June 1, 2008 to May 31, 2009.
The net sales to these customers did not exceateed upon threshold and the Company does netetgpmake any additional payments
under this definitive purchase agreement.

On August 22, 2008, the Company completed the aitopn of certain assets of Suncoast AutomotivedBets, Inc. (“SCP”), specifically its
operation which produced new and remanufacturedredtors and starters for the automotive, indusirid heavy duty after-markets. These
products were sold under the SCP™ brand name. dduésition was consummated pursuant to an assehase agreement, dated August 13,
2008.

The acquisition of SCP enhanced the Company’s nhahare in North America. Pro forma informatiom@t presented as the assets, results of
operations and purchase price of SCP were notfgignt to the Company’s consolidated financial gogior results of operations, individually
or in the aggregate with the acquisition of AIM.
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The following table reflects the final allocatiohtbe purchase price:

Consideration and acquisition cost:

Cash consideratic $2,448,00!
Purchase price hold ba 300,00(
Note payable 1,293,001
Acquisition cost: 279,00(
Total $4,320,001
Purchase price allocatior

Accounts receivable, net of allowanc $ (95,000
Inventory 1,366,001
Trademarks 156,00(
Customer relationshiy 970,00(
Non-compete agreemer 61,00(
Goodwill 1,862,001
Total purchase pric $4,320,001

The note payable to SCP of $1,293,000 bears initatgsime plus 1% and is payable in monthly instahts of $100,000 beginning in
October 2008. During the year ended March 31, 20iremaining principal and interest of $722,008 11,000, respectively, were paid on
the note payable to SCP.

The results of operations of certain assets addjfiicen Reliance, AIM, and SCP are included in ttmngblidated Statement of Income from
their respective acquisition dates.

4. Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the Company’s intdigiassets at March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2009.

Weighted Average March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
Amortization Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Value Amortization
Intangible assets subject to amortizatior

Trademarks 9 years $ 553,000 $ 115000 $ 368,000 $ 45,00(
Customer relationshir 12 years 6,464,00! 799,00( 2,411,00! 265,00(
Non-compete agreemer 5 years 257,00( 56,00( 111,00( 16,00(
Total 11 years $ 7,274,001 $ 970,00( $ 2,890,001 $ 326,00(

Amortization expense related to intangible asseis $644,000 and $326,000 during the years endedh\Vidr, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The aggregate estimated future amortization expfemsetangible assets is as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2011 $ 774,00(
2012 774,00(
2013 774,00(
2014 738,00(
2015 670,00(
Thereaftel 2,574,001
Total $6,304,00!
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5. Short-Term Investments

The short-term investments account contains thetae$ the Company’s deferred compensation plae.plan’s assets consist primarily of
mutual funds and are classified as available fta. §ehe Company redeemed $70,000 of short-termsinvents for the payment of deferred
compensation liabilities during the year ended Mat, 2010. As a result, the Company recordedsadb$5,000 on redemption of short-term
investments for the payment of deferred compenséitibilities under its general and administrattxg@ense line item in the statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2010. As ofdi&@1, 2010 and 2009, the fair market value ofstih@t-term investments was $451,000
and $335,000, and the liability to plan particigawas $451,000 and $335,000, respectively.

6. Accounts Receivable— Net

Included in accounts receivable — net are significdfset accounts related to customer allowaneesesl, customer payment discrepancies,
in-transit and estimated future unit returns, eated future credits to be provided for Used Coedsrned by the customers and potential bad
debts. Due to the forward looking nature and tlffeidint aging periods of certain estimated offssoaints, they may not, at any point in time,
directly relate to the balances in the open tradeants receivable.

Accounts receivable — net is comprised of the felfgy at March 31:

2010 2009

Accounts receivabl— trade $ 30,977,00 $ 40,126,00
Allowance for bad debt (1,141,001 (243,000
Customer allowances earn (5,104,001 (5,109,001
Customer payment discrepanc (553,000) (681,000
Customer finished goods returns accrt (20,036,00) (20,097,00)
Customer core returns accru (16,044,00) (12,875,00)
Less: total accounts receivable offset acco (32,878,00) (29,005,00)
Total accounts receivab— net $ (1,901,000(1) $ 11,121,00

(1) Accounts receivabl— net has been reclassified to accrued liabilitiethenCompan’'s Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2

Warranty Returns

The Company allows its customers to return goodeg¢dCompany that their end-user customers hauened to them, whether the returned
item is or is not defective (warranty returns). T@npany accrues an estimate of its exposure tcantgrreturns based on a historical analysis
of the level of this type of return as a percentaigmtal unit sales. Amounts charged to expensé¢hiese warranty returns are considered in
arriving at the Company’s net sales. The warraetyrn accrual is included under the customer fetsgoods returns accruals in the above
table.

Change in the Company’s warranty return accruasifollows at March 31:

2010 2009
Balance at beginning of peri $ (2,596,00) $ (2,824,000
Charged to expens 36,096,000 31,995,00
Amounts processe (35,247,00) (32,223,00)
Balance at end of peric $ (3,445,000 $ (2,596,000
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7. Inventory

Non-core inventory, Inventory unreturned, Long-termecimventory, and Long-term core inventory dep@sdomprised of the following at

March 31:

Non-core inventory
Raw material
Work-in-process
Finished good

Less allowance for excess and obsolete inver
Total

Inventory unreturned

Long-term core inventory
Used cores held at comp¢ s facilities
Used cores expected to be returned by custo
Remanufactured cores held in finished go
Remanufactured cores held at customers loca

Less allowance for excess and obsolete inver
Total

Long-term core inventory deposit

8. Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment, at cost, are as follows acmad.:

Machinery and equipmel
Office equipment and fixture
Leasehold improvemen

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize
Total

2010 2009
$10,362,00  $ 9,810,00!
29,00 56,00(
22,919,00 19,643,00
33,310,00 29,509,00
(1,763,000  (1,586,00i)
$31,547,00  $27,923,00
$ 3,924,000 $ 4,708,00
$14,491,00  $17,580,00
3,350,001 2,799,001
17,955,00 15,536,00
32,878,00 27,501,00
68,674,00 63,416,00
(717,000 (595,00()
$67,957,00  $62,821,00
$25,768,00  $24,451,00

2010 2009
$26,04400 $ 25,798,00
6,043,001 5,499,001
7,035,001 6,187,001
39,122,00  37,484,00
(26,429,00)  (23,487,00)
$12,693,00 $13,997,00

Plant and equipment located in the foreign cousitnibere the Company has production facilities ofi@iccumulated depreciation, totaled
$5,759,000 and $4,967,000 at March 31, 2010 an@,2@8pectively. These assets constitute subdtgraibthe long-lived assets of the

Company located outside of the United States.
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9. Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases various types of machinery angpbater equipment under agreements accounted faapdal leases and included in pl
and equipment as follows at March 31:

2010 2009
Cost $ 6,515,001 $ 7,213,00
Less: accumulated amortizati (4,782,001 (4,129,001
Total $ 1,733,00! $ 3,084,00!
Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 201€hcapital leases are as follows:
Year Ending March 31,
2011 $ 992,00(
2012 262,00(
2013 153,00(
2014 43,00(
Total minimum lease paymer 1,450,001
Less amount representing inter (52,000
Present value of future minimum lease payn 1,398,001
Less current portio (953,000
$ 445,00(

On October 26, 2005, the Company entered into ataale-leaseback agreement with a bank. Thesaggat provided the Company with
$4,110,000 in equipment financing repayable in rigninstallments of $81,000 over the 60 month tefrthe lease agreement, with a one
dollar purchase option at the end of the lease.t&ha financing arrangement has an effective isteate of 6.75%. The proceeds from the
agreement were used to reduce the outstandingdealanhe Company’line of credit with the bank, which had been usefiscal 2006 to fun
the purchase of fixed assets.

Assets financed under the agreement had a netuado& of $1,517,000. The difference between thaenfding provided, which was based on
the fair market value of the equipment, and theboek value of the equipment financed was accoufuteds a deferred gain on the sale-
leaseback agreement. The deferred gain is beingtiaetat a monthly rate of $43,000 over the edaidive year life of the capital lease as
and is accounted for as an offset to general amdrastrative expenses. At March 31, 2010 and 2@@®deferred gain remaining to be
amortized was $319,000 and $843,000, respectively.

10. Debt, Accounts Receivable Discount Programs

The Company’s amended and restated credit agreemiéinits bank (the “Old Credit Agreement”) proeid the Company with a revolving
loan of up to $40,000,000, including obligationslenoutstanding letters of credit. The Old Credirdement, among other things, allowed the
Company to borrow under the revolving loan for pluepose of consummating certain permitted acqaissti

In June 2009, the Company entered into a sixth dment to the Old Credit Agreement with its bankisTd@mendment, among other things:
(i) created a borrowing reserve in the amount ¢58d,000 reserved by the Company’s bank againsCtmepanys revolving loan commitme
amount and available in the event the receivalotes the Company’s largest customer were no longeodnted and (i) amended certain
financial covenants, including the Company’s legeraatio and EBITDA covenants.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a sevamtbndment to the Old Credit Agreement with its bdariks amendment, among other
things, extended the expiration date of the criaditity to July 13, 2010.
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The Old Credit Agreement, among other things, negliihe Company to maintain certain financial cares, including cash flow, fixed char
coverage ratio and leverage ratio and a numbezsifictive covenants, including limits on capitapenditures and operating leases,
prohibitions against additional indebtedness, paytroédividends, pledge of assets and loans te@f§i and/or affiliates. In addition, it was an
event of default under the Old Credit Agreemei@dfwyn Joffe was no longer the Company’s CEO.

In October 2009, the Company entered into a rexgleredit and term loan agreement (the “New Cradieement”), with its bank and one
additional lender (the “Lenders”), which permite tBompany to borrow up to $45,000,000 (the “Newd@reacility”). The New Credit

Facility is comprised of (i) a revolving facilityitih a $7,000,000 letter of credit sub-facility aiiyia term loan. The Company may borrow on a
revolving basis up to an amount equal to $35,0@rAhus all outstanding letter of credit obligasaminus a borrowing reserve of $7,500,000
(the “Revolving Loan”). The borrowing reserve rengin effect only if the Company is party to a iigable discount program pursuant to
which its accounts receivable owed to the Companiysblargest customer are being discounted. Tire tean is in the principal amount of
$10,000,000 (the “Term Loan").

The New Credit Agreement, among other things, meguihe Company to maintain certain financial cewes, including tangible net worth,
fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio wants.

The Term Loan matures in October 2014 and regpiiesipal payments of $500,000 on a quarterly bagig first quarterly payment was due
on January 4, 2010. The Revolving Loan expiresdtoer 2011 and provides the Company the optigrdaest up to three one-year
extensions.

The Lenders hold a security interest in substdntédl of the Company’s assets. There was no ondite balance on the Revolving Loan at
March 31, 2010. At March 31, 2009, the balancénefrevolving loan under the Old Credit Agreemens %a1,600,000. The Company had
reserved $1,826,000 of the Revolving Loan for dtgridtters of credit for workers’ compensation irsswce and $1,348,000 reserved for
commercial letters of credit as of March 31, 2048 of March 31, 2010, $31,826,000 was availablecatide Revolving Loan, and of this,
$7,500,000 was reserved for use in the event tmep@ay’s largest customer discontinued its curreattice of having the Company’s
receivables disounted.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a first amest to the New Credit Agreement with its Lend@tis amendment provides, among
other things, that the borrowing reserve agairnst@Gbmpany’s Revolving Loan commitment amount besiased from $7,500,000 to
$10,000,000.

The Company was in compliance with all financialeoants under the New Credit Agreement as of Maici2010.

The Revolving Loan and the Term Loan bear integiesither the bank’reference rate plus an applicable margin or alborinterbank Offere
Rate (“LIBOR”) rate (which in the case of the Tewan shall not be lower than 3.75%) plus an appleanargin, as selected by the Company
in accordance with the New Credit Agreement. Tliereace rate is, as further described in the NeadiCAgreement, the higher of the bank’s
announced base rate and the Federal funds raté/plpsrcent. The applicable margins are determinedgyaon a prospective basis as set
forth below:

Leverage Ratio Applicable LIBOR Margin Applicable Reference Rate Margit
Less than 1.5:1. 275 basis point 150 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.5:: 300 basis point 175 basis point

The Company has established receivable discougtgms with certain customers and their respectarékd. Under these programs, the
Company may sell those customers’ receivablesasetfbanks at a discount to be agreed upon attlecttie receivables are sold. These
discount arrangements have allowed the Compangdelerate collection of customer receivables aggieg $85,592,000 and $72,299,000
the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respbgtiwea weighted average of 334 days and 341 dagpgectively. On an annualized basis,
the weighted average discount rate on the recagauld to the banks during each of the years elidedh 31, 2010 and 2009 was 4.5%. The
amount of the discount on these receivables, $3089%nd $3,089,000 for the years ended March@IQ 2nd 2009, respectively, was
recorded as interest expense. In September 208%fdhese customers reinstated the use of itévedde discount program which had been
previously suspended in May 2008.
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11. Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Purchases and expenses denominated in currenbistiodn the U.S. dollar, which are primarily rethto the Company’s production facilities
overseas, expose the Company to market risk frotemmahmovements in foreign exchange rates betweet).S. dollar and the foreign
currency. The Company’s primary risk exposureasfichanges in the rate between the U.S. dollatladlexican peso related to the
operation of the Company’s facility in Mexico. TB®mpany enters into forward foreign currency exgeacontracts to exchange U.S. dollars
for Mexican pesos in order to mitigate this riskelextent to which forward foreign currency exchengntracts are used is modified
periodically in response to managemerastimate of market conditions and the terms angth of specific purchase requirements to funde
overseas facilities.

The Company enters into forward foreign currenaghexge contracts in order to reduce the impaadr@ign currency fluctuations and not to
engage in currency speculation. The use of deviedinancial instruments allows the Company to oeditis exposure to the risk that the
eventual cash outflow resulting from funding th@enses of the foreign operations will be materiaffigcted by changes in exchange rates.
The Company does not hold or issue financial ims&nts for trading purposes. The forward foreigrmeney exchange contracts are designated
for forecasted expenditure requirements to funddaheign operations.

The Company had forward foreign currency exchamggracts with a U.S. dollar equivalent notionalueabf $6,159,000 and $7,224,000 at
March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The forwardign currency exchange contracts entered irqaire the Company to exchange
Mexican pesos for U.S. dollars. These contracteigdlly expire in a year or less, at rates agreehkeainception of the contracts. The
counterparty to this derivative transaction is ganfinancial institution with investment grade lmetter credit rating; however, the Company is
exposed to credit risk with this institution. Thedit risk is limited to the potential unrealizedims (which offset currency fluctuations adverse
to the Company) in any such contract should thiswterparty fail to perform as contracted. Any chesin the fair values of forward foreign
currency exchange contracts are reflected in cuperod earnings and accounted for as an increasfiset to general and administrative
expenses.

The following table shows the effect of the Compamerivative instruments on its Consolidated Steget of Income:

Amount of (Gain) Loss

Location of (Gain) Loss Recognized in Income on Derivatives
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgin Recognized in Income Years Ended
Instruments under Statement 132 on Derivatives March 31, 2010 March 31, 200¢
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: General and administrative expen $(1,565,00) $1,194,001

The fair value of the forward foreign currency eanbe contracts of $517,000 is included in prepgpkases and other current assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2010. dihe/dlue of the forward foreign currency exchangatracts of ($1,048,000) is included in
other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balarsheet at March 31, 2009.

12. Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted the guidance related to fhilevaeasurements on April 1, 2008. The Companyndsffair value as the price that wo
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity (an exit price) in the principal or moatlvantageous market for the asset or liabilityni
orderly transaction between market participantthermeasurement date. The Company uses a thragidiietion hierarchy based upon
observable and unobservable inputs:

. Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjustedytive markets for identical assets or liakahti
. Level 2— Valuation is based upon quoted prices for simit@ets and liabilities in active markets, or otimguis that are observat
for the asset or liability, either directly or imectly, for substantially the full term of the fimeial instrument
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. Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs treasignificant to the fair value measuremt

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of okagleymarket data when available. In instances iiclwtine inputs used to measure fair value
fall into different levels of the fair value hiedduy, the fair value measurement has been deternmiaged on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itdrety. The Company’s assessment of the signifieasfa particular item to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgmentyuiticly the consideration of inputs specific to theed or liability. The following table sets
forth by level within the fair value hierarchy, t®mpany’s financial assets and liabilities thateveccounted for at fair value on a recurring
basis at March 31, 2010 and 2009, according tedheation techniques we used to determine theinviues.

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
Fair Value Measurements Fair Value Measurements
Using Inputs Considered as Using Inputs Considered as
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment
Cash $207,00( $207,00( — — — — — —
Mutual funds 244.,00( 244,00( — — $ 335,00( $335,00( — —
Prepaid expenses a
other current asse
Forward foreign
currency exchange
contracts 517,00( — $517,00( — — — — —
Liabilities
Other current liabilitiet
Deferred compensatic 451,00( 451,00( — — 335,00( 335,00( — —

Forward foreign
currency exchange
contracts — — — — 1,048,001 — $1,048,001 —

The Company’s shoterm investments, which fund its deferred compeosdiabilities, consist of investments in cash amgtual funds. Thes
investments are classified as Level 1 as the slvdithese mutual funds trade with sufficient fregeyeand volume to enable the Company to
obtain pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractgaraearily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the
banks or foreign currency dealers. During the figears ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, a gain &6%$1000 and a loss of $1,194,000,
respectively, were recorded in general and adnnatige expenses due to the change in the valugediorward foreign currency exchange
contracts subsequent to entering into the contracts

Disclosures for non-financial assets and non-fir@diabilities that are measured at fair valuet tecognized and disclosed at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis, were required prospectivelyirbegg April 1, 2009. During the fiscal year endddrch 31, 2010, the Company had no
significant measurements of assets or liabilitiefaia value on a nonrecurring basis subsequetiidiv initial recognition.

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investsjetcounts receivable, accounts payable and attaldities approximate their fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instruméiis.carrying amounts of the Revolving Loan, Ternahoand other long-term liabilities
approximate their fair value based on current ridefstruments with similar characteristics.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse faciliti€alifornia, Tennessee, Malaysia, Singapore aeditb under operating leases expiring
through 2017. The Company also has short term actstiof one year or less covering its third paréyelouses that provide for contingent
payments based on the level of sales that are ggedehrough the third party warehouse.
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At March 31, 2010, the remaining future minimumtegpayments under the above operating leasesdoaws:

Year Ending March 31,

2011 $ 2,779,00
2012 2,597,001
2013 1,582,001
2014 1,606,00!
2015 1,639,00!
Thereaftel 1,520,001
Total minimum lease paymer $11,723,00

During fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Comjiracurred total operating lease expenses of $20083 $2,792,000 and $3,309,000,
respectively.

Commitments to Provide Marketing Allowances underd-Term Customer Contracts

The Company has or is renegotiating long-term agesgs with many of its major customers. Under tlaggeements, which typically have
initial terms of at least four years, the Compangeésignated as the exclusive or primary suppdiespecified categories of remanufactured
alternators and starters. In consideration foiGbmpany’s designation as a customer’s exclusiy@iorary supplier, the Company typically
provides the customer with a package of marketicgritives. These incentives differ from contraatdatract and can include (i) the issuance
of a specified amount of credits against receivableaccordance with a schedule set forth in thevaat contract, (ii) support for a particular
customer’s research or marketing efforts provide@d ccheduled basis, (iii) discounts granted imegtion with each individual shipment of
product, and (iv) other marketing, research, séaqgansion or product development support. Thesgands typically require that the Company
meet ongoing standards related to fulfillment, @riand quality. The Company’s contracts with majmstomers expire at various dates through
March 2019.

The Company typically grants its customers markgtitowances in connection with these customgusthase of goods. The Company rec

the cost of all marketing allowances provided $ociistomers. Such allowances include sales in@néimd concessions and typically consis

(i) allowances which may only be applied againsiifer purchases and are recorded as a reducti@veéaues in accordance with a schedule set
forth in the long-term contract, (ii) allowancesated to a single exchange of product that arerdetbas a reduction of revenues at the time the
related revenues are recorded or when such ineasngire offered, and (iii) allowances that are nmad®nnection with the purchase of

inventory from a customer.
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The following table presents the breakout of alloees discussed above, recorded as a reductiomgnues in the years ended March 31:

Years Ended March 31,

2010 2009 2008
Allowances incurred under lo-term customer contrac $13,278,00 $ 9,002,00! $11,780,00
Allowances related to a single exchange of pro 14,162,00 11,725,00 10,427,00
Allowances related to core inventory purchase @lidmns 486,00( 2,681,00! 2,532,00!
Total customer allowances recorded as a reducfioevenues $27,926,00 $23,408,00 $24,739,00

The following table presents the commitments taiiradlowances which will be recognized as a chaggnst revenue, and customer
Remanufactured Core purchase obligations whichheiliecognized in accordance with the terms ofdélevant long-term customer contracts:

Year Ending March 31,

2011 $13,543,00
2012 6,171,001
2013 4,078,00I
2014 3,964,00!
2015 3,365,00!
Thereaftel 10,423,00
Total marketing allowance $41,544,00

In March 2005, the Company entered into an agreemim a major customer. As part of this agreemtrg,Company’s designation as this
customer’s exclusive supplier of remanufacturedadrtgal alternators and starters was extended frdsruBey 28, 2008 to December 31, 2012.
In addition to customary marketing allowances,@menpany agreed to acquire the customer’s impagtrator and starter Remanufactured
Core inventory. The customer was obligated to paselthe Remanufactured or Used Cores in the cus®imeentory upon termination of the
agreement for any reason. The Company establiskf@dyaerm core inventory deposit account for ta&ie of the Remanufactured Core
inventory estimated to be on hand with the custommetanuary 2010, as a result of the acquisitfaiie customer by another of the
Company’s major customers this agreement was tetetdn However, this agreement was replaced by mseagent with the acquiring
customer. As part of this new agreement, the Compaas designated as the acquiring customer’s pyirsapplier of remanufactured import
alternators and starters. The obligation to puretthe Remanufactured or Used Cores upon terminafitre old agreement was transferred to
the acquiring customer under the new agreement.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Companieeed into a five-year agreement with one of tloeldvs largest automobile manufacturers to
supply this manufacturer with a new line of rematifired alternators and starters for the UniteteStand Canadian markets. The Company
expanded its operations and built-up its inventorgneet the requirements of this contract and imeclicertain transition costs associated with
this build-up. As part of the agreement, the Comppalao agreed to grant this customer $6,000,0@0edfits that are issued as sales to this
customer are made. Of the total credits, $3,600v@®issued during fiscal 2006 and $600,000 was i the each of the second quarters of
fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010. The agreemsntantains other typical provisions, such as perémce, quality and fulfillment
requirements that the Company must meet, a reqairethat the Company provide marketing suppori®d¢ustomer and a provision
(standard in this manufacturer’s

F-25




Table of Contents

vendor agreements) granting the customer the rigterminate the agreement at any time for anyoreas December 2009, this agreement
was extended for an additional two-year period ézd&nber 2012.

In July 2006, the Company entered into an agreemithta customer to become this customer’s prinsaiyplier of alternators and starters.
This agreement was amended in January 2008 toce#ttercontract period through January 31, 2011pasof this amendment, the Company
also agreed to accelerate $2,300,000 of promot@limiances provided under this agreement. Thesagiional allowances otherwise would
have been earned by the customer during the fouriter of fiscal 2008 and the first quarter ofdis2009.

Workers Compensation Insurance

Effective January 1, 2007 through the current figear, the Company’s workers compensation insw@audicy has been written on a
guaranteed cost basis (first dollar payment oheawvith no deductibles). For each of the five ygaisr to January 1, 2007, the Company
purchased workers compensation insurance on addactible plan. The Company was, and still &l for the first $250,000 of each claim
until all claims are settled (essentially self-irexl). The Company records an estimate of its ligdfibr the self-insured portion of its workers’
compensation policy by including an estimate ofttital claims incurred and reported as well asstimate of incurred, but not reported,
claims by applying the Company’s historical claideelopment factor to its estimate of incurred esgbrted claims.

14. Major Customers and Suppliers

The Company'’s four largest customers accountethfofollowing total percentage of net sales andants receivable—trade:

Years Ended March 31,

Sales 2010 2009 2008
Customer A 44% 49% 53%
Customer B (1 24% 23% 20%
Customer C 8% 10% 9%
Customer C 9% 10% 12%
Accounts receivable- trade 2010 2009
Customer A 24% 18%
Customer B (1 15% 47%
Customer C 31% 25%
Customer C 4% 3%

(1) One of the Compar's largest customers was acquired by another afémepan’s largest customers. Therefore, the percentaget
sales for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008h& percentage of accounts receivable — tradé sirch 31, 2009 attributable to
Customer B include the combined net sales and atsoeceivabl— trade of these custome

For the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 20@8supplier provided approximately 29%, 25% arfh 20 the raw materials purchased,
respectively. No other supplier accounted for ntbes 10% of the Company’s purchases.
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15. Income Taxes

The income tax expense (benefit) for the years@&hierch 31 is as follows:

Current tax expense (benel
Federal
State
Foreign

Total current tax expent

Deferred tax expense (bene

Federal

State

Foreign

Total deferred tax benet
Total income tax expen:

Years Ended March 31,
2010 2009 2008

$4,203,00! $ 2,831,001 $2,574,00!

1,121,001 1,260,001 (32,000)
161,00 561,00 356,00
5,485,001 4,652,001 2,898,001
(117,000 (1,149,00) (708,00()
109,00( (914,000() 506,00
(195,000 — —
(203,00() (2,063,00) (202,00()

$5,282,00! $ 2,589,00! $2,696,00!
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Deferred income taxes consist of the following atrivh 31:

Assets
Net operating loss car-forwards
Accounts receivable valuatic
Right of return reserv
Estimate for return
Allowance for customer incentive
Inventory obsolescence rese
Inventory capitalizatiol
Vacation pay
Deferred compensatic
Accrued bonu:
Stock options
Intangible amortizatiol
Deferred core revent
Claims payablt
Deferred state ta
Other

Total deferred tax asse

Liabilities
Deferred state ta
Prepaid expense
Accelerated depreciatic
Prepaid insuranc
Other

Total deferred tax liabilitie
Net deferred tax asse

Net current deferred income tax as
Net lon¢-term deferred income tax ass
Total

2010 2009
$ 204,00( $ 242,00(
2,719,00! 2,404,00
815,00( 427,00(
1,063,001 1,109,00!
642,00( 505,00(
989,00( 866,00(
322,00( 366,00(
208,00( 215,00(
180,00( 133,00(
158,00( 596,00(
1,282,001 1,223,001
450,00( 908,00(
798,00( 1,108,001
618,00( 485,00(
375,00( —
667,00( 676,00(
$11,490,00  $11,263,00
$ — $ (30,000
(586,00() (366,000
(1,135,000 (1,363,001
(239,000 (238,000
(188,000 —
$(2,148,00)  $(1,997,00)
$ 9,342,001 $ 9,266,001
$ 8,391,00! $ 8,277,00!
951,00( 989,00(

$ 9,342,000 $ 9,266,00

At March 31, 2010, the Company had no federal petating loss carryforwards, and approximately $3,800 of state net operating loss
carryforwards. The utilization of these net opemgtioss carryforwards may be limited in a givenry@e state net operating loss

carryforwards expire between 2018 and 2022.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is depengmr the Company’s ability to generate sufficiex@able income. Management believes that
it is more likely than not that future taxable ino® will be sufficient to realize the recorded deddrtax assets.

For the year ended March 31, 2010, 2009, and 26@8&rimary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision were (i) the current
liability due to federal, state and foreign incotages and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&rred income tax asset.

The difference between the income tax expenseedetteral statutory rate and the Company’s effedtix rate is as follows:
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Years Ended March 31,

2010 2009 2008
Statutory federal income tax re 34% 34% 34%
State income tax rate, net of federal ber 5% 4% 4%
Foreign income taxed at different ra B)% D% 2%
Other income ta: 1% _3% 1%

35% 40% 37%

During the current fiscal year, the Company recpgtia decrease of $214,000 in the liability foramognized tax benefits.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income taurres in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and varistete and foreign jurisdictions with varying
statutes of limitations. At March 31, 2010, theehmial Revenue Service (“IRS”) had an ongoing teangixation of the federal tax returns for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The openiagting was held on September 15, 2009. In Nove@®@9, the IRS expanded its ongoing
tax examination of the federal tax returns to idelthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. In Mayo2@e IRS concluded its examination of
the Company’s federal income tax returns for teedi 2007 and 2008 tax years. The IRS requirechaages to the Company’s tax returns for
those fiscal years as filed.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows at Madé.:

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of peri $ 925,00( $663,00( $ =
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 27,00( 287,00( 431,00(
Additions for tax positions of prior ye: — 10,00( 232,00(
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye (241,000 (35,000 —
Settlement: — — —
Balance at end of peric $ 711,00( $925,00( $663,00(

The total unrecognized tax benefits that, if reépgt, would affect the Company’s effective tax nagre $368,000 as of March 31, 2010.

Included in the balance at March 31, 2010, are F®Bof tax positions for which the ultimate dedhitity is highly certain, but for which
there is uncertainty about the timing of such détility. Because of the impact of deferred tax@aating, other than interest and penalties
disallowance of the shorter deductibility periodulbnot affect the annual effective tax rate, bould accelerate the payment of cash to the
taxing authority to an earlier period.

Due to the recent completion of a federal tax exaion, the Company expects the amount of unrezedrtax benefits to significantly
decrease in the next 12 months. This decrease5®,$d0 to $525,000 will have a significant positivgact on the Company’s effective tax
rates, results of operations and the financialtjpys of the Company during that period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits as partooime tax expense, which amounted to
$6,000, $7,000 and $55,000 during the years endmdiv31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all empleye®o are 21 years of age with at least six mootiservice. The plan permits eligible
employees to make contributions up to certain atiohs, with the Company matching 25% of each pi@dting employee’s contribution up to
the first 6% of employee compensation. Employeesramediately vested in their voluntary employertdbutions and vest in the Company’s
matching contributions
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ratably over five years. The Company’s matchingtigbution to the 401(k) plan was $88,000, $93,0060 &77,000 for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

17. Stock Options

In January 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 &ption Plan (the “1994 Plan”), under which it veaghorized to issue nagualified stocl
options and incentive stock options to key emplgyé@ectors and consultants. After a number ofedialder-approved increases to this plan,
at March 31, 2002 the aggregate number of stodkmpapproved was 960,000 shares of the Compaoysnon stock. The term and vesting
period of options granted is determined by a cotemibf the Board of Directors with a term not teeed ten years. At the Company’s Annual
Meeting of Shareholders held on November 8, 20821894 Plan was amended to increase the autharizeler of shares issued to
1,155,000. As of March 31, 2010 and 2009, optionsurchase 406,350 and 475,350 shares of commok, s&spectively, were outstanding
under the 1994 Plan and no options were availalgrant.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholdersilei December 17, 2003, the shareholders apprinee@ampany’s 2003 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) which had beewpteéd by the Company’s Board of Directors on Oct@ie 2003. Under the Incentive Plan,
a total of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s comstock were reserved for grants of Incentive Awanag all of the Company’s employees
are eligible to participate. The 2003 IncentiverPhdll terminate on October 31, 2013, unless teated earlier by the Company’s Board of
Directors. As of March 31, 2010 and 2009, optianpudrchase 1,051,984 and 1,097,734 shares of coratnok, respectively, were outstand
under the Incentive Plan and options to purcha®600 and 63,850 shares of common stock, respégtivere available for grant.

In November 2004, the Company’s shareholders appgrtive 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Ftha “2004 Plan”).which
provides for the granting of options to non-emplgérectors. At the Company’s Annual Meeting of @halders held on February 25, 2010,
the Company’s shareholders approved an amendm#ém 2004 Plan that increased the number of sludiresmmon stock reserved for grant
under the 2004 Plan from 175,000 to 275,000. Agarfch 31, 2010 and 2009, options to purchase 1000@d 158,000 shares of common
stock, respectively, were issued, and 105,000 &1@DD shares of common stock were available fantgra

The shares of common stock issued upon exercia@odviously granted stock option are consider&dissuances from shares reserved for
issuance upon adoption of the various plans. Thegany requires that the option holders provide itew notice of exercise to the stock plan
administrator and payment for the shares priossaance of the shares.
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A summary of stock option transactions follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,688,06 $ 8.2¢
Granted 58,00( $11.5¢
Exercisec (55,529 $ 4.71
Cancellec (29,089 $10.64
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,661,45! $ 8.47
Granted 84,00( $ 5.8¢
Exercisec — $ —
Cancellec (14,379 $12.1
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,731,08. $ 8.32
Granted 12,00( $ 4.7¢
Exercisec (64,000 $ 2.4C
Cancellec (50,750 $10.6¢
Outstanding at March 31, 20 1,628,33 $ 8.4¢

Based on the market value of the Company’s comnmok st March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the prarainsic value of options exercised
was $262,000, $0 and $87,000, respectively.

The followings table summarizes information abdwt options outstanding at March 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted
Average Remaining Aggregate Average Aggregate
Range of Exercise Life Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Exercise price Shares Price In Years Value Shares Price Value
$1.100 to $1.80 18,75( $ 1.2¢ 1.3C $ 98,25( 18,75( $ 1.2¢ $ 98,25(
$2.160 to $3.60 292,60( 2.7¢ 2.1¢ 1,088,47. 292,60( 2.7¢ 1,088,47.
$4.170 to $6.34 169,00( 5.8¢ 5.7t 108,16( 142,33: 6.0C 71,16¢
$7.270 to $9.27 372,90( 8.7¢ 4.5¢ — 364,56¢ 8.7¢ —
$9.650 to $11.81 369,08 10.1¢ 5.81 — 363,75( 10.17% —
$11.900 to $13.80 400,00( 12.0¢t 6.3¢€ — 400,00( 12.0¢ —
$14.500 to $18.37 6,00( $ 14.5( 6.6€ — 6,00( $ 14.5C —
1,628,33. $1,294,88. 1,587,99 $1,257,88!

The aggregate intrinsic values in the above tadpeasent the pre-tax value of all in-the-moneyaiif all such options had been exercised on
March 31, 2010 based on the Company'’s closing gpoicke of $6.50 as of that date.

Options to purchase 1,587,998, 1,637,082 and 11283%hares of common stock were exercisable asaofiM31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The weighted average exercise pfiogptions exercisable was $8.50, $8.31 and $8.a# karch 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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A summary of changes in the status of non-vesteksiptions during the fiscal year ended March2®1,0 is presented below.

Weighted Average Grant

Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested at March 31, 20( 94,00: $2.9¢
Granted 12,00( $1.8¢
Vested (65,66¢) $3.42
Non-vested at March 31, 20: 40,33¢ $1.9¢

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company began using tiodified prospective application method of tréosifor all its stockbased compensati
plans. The Company did not modify the terms of previously granted options in anticipation of tli®ption of this guidance. At March 31,
2010, there was $36,000 of total unrecognized cosgi@®n expense from stock-based compensationegtamder the plans, which is related
to non-vested shares. The compensation expenspésted to be recognized over a weighted averastingeperiod of 0.58 years.

18. Shareholders’ Equity Transactions
Equity Transactior

In May 2007, the Company completed the sale of BEP shares of its common stock at a price ofGRLfrer share and warrants to purchase
up to 546,283 shares of its common stock at anceseeprice of $15.00 per share. This sale was rtfadegh a private placement to accredited
investors. The warrants are callable by the Comjifaimynong other things, the volume weighted averagding price of the Company’s
common stock as quoted by Bloomberg L.P. is greater $22.50 for 10 consecutive trading days. Hirevilue of the warrants at the date of
grant was estimated to be approximately $4.44 @aramt using the Black-Scholes pricing model. Télkofving assumptions were used to
calculate the fair value of the warrants: dividgield of 0%; expected volatility of 40.01%; riskef interest rate of 4.5766%; and an expected
life of five years.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, the Company’s Board of Directorshautzed a share repurchase program of up to $800®f the Company’s outstanding
common stock from time to time in the open market & private transactions at prices deemed apjatepoy management. There is no
expiration date governing the period over which@wnpany can repurchase shares under this progfsnCompany made no share
repurchases during fiscal 2010.

19. Litigation
The Company is subject to various lawsuits andrdan the normal course of business. Managemerst nlotebelieve that the outcome of these
matters will have a material adverse effect offifigncial position or future results of operations.

20. Related Party Transactions

The Company has arrangements or entered into agréemwith three members of its Board of Directdessrs. Mel Marks, Philip Gay and
Selwyn Joffe.

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directoreead to engage Mr. Mel Marks to provide consulegvices to the Company. Mr. Marks
is currently paid an annual consulting fee of $880,per year. Mr. Marks was paid $350,000 in fi€l0, 2009 and 2008. The Company can
terminate this arrangement at any time.

The Company agreed to pay Mr. Gay $90,000 perfgeaerving on the Company’s Board of Directors] &or being Chairman of the
Company’s Audit and Ethics Committees.
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On February 14, 2003, Mr. Joffe accepted his ctipenition as President and Chief Executive Offioeaddition to serving as Chairman of
Board of Directors. Mr. Joffe’s agreement, whichsvegiginally scheduled to expire on March 31, 20&#8led for an annual base salary of
$500,000, the continuation of his prior agreemetztive to payment of 1% of the value of any tratisas which close by March 31, 2006 and
other compensation generally provided to the Comigasther executive staff members.

On April 22, 2005, the Company entered into an ainent to its employment agreement with Mr. Joffader the amendment, Mr. Joffe’'s
term of employment was extended from March 31, 200darch 31, 2008. His base salary, bonus arraeg&n1% transaction fee right and
fringe benefits remained unchanged. This amendmagatunanimously approved by the Company’s Boaidictors.

Before the amendment, Mr. Joffe had the right tmbeate his employment upon a change of controlrandive his salary and benefits through
March 31, 2006. Under the amendment, upon a chaihgentrol (which has been redefined pursuant éoaimendment), Mr. Joffe will be
entitled to a sale bonus equal to the sum of (@ twes his base salary plus (ii) two times hisrage bonus earned for the two years
immediately prior to the change of control. The adment also grants Mr. Joffe the right to termir@seemployment with effect on or after
the one year anniversary of a change of controltarden receive salary and benefits for a one-gednd following such termination plus a
bonus equal to the average bonus Mr. Joffe earngdgithe two years immediately prior to his volmyttermination.

If Mr. Joffe is terminated without cause or resifmsgood reason (as defined in the amendment)Ctimapany must pay Mr. Joffe (i) his base
salary, (ii) his average bonus earned for the teery immediately prior to termination (or, if suehmination occurs within the first three
months of the Company’s fiscal year, for the secamd third years preceding the year in which sectmination occurs), and (iii) all other
benefits payable to Mr. Joffe pursuant to the emplent agreement, as amended, through the latercojears after the date of termination of
employment or March 31, 2008. Under the amendméntJoffe is also entitled to an additional “grags- payment to offset the excise taxes
(and related income taxes on the “gross-up” payjrteat he may be obligated to pay with respechéofirst $3,000,000 of “parachute
payments” (as defined in Section 280G of the Codlée made to him upon a change of control. Thenament has redefined the term “for
cause” to apply only to misconduct in connectiothvidlr. Joffe’s performance of his duties. Pursuarthe amendment, any options that have
been or may be granted to Mr. Joffe will fully vegion a change of control and be exercisable faoayear period following the change of
control, and Mr. Joffe agreed to waive the righpheviously had under the employment agreemergdaire the Company to purchase his
option shares and any underlying options if his legrpent were terminated for any reason. The amentifoether provides that Mr. Joffe’s
agreement not to compete with the Company ternsretéhe end of his employment term.

In December 2006, the Company’s employment agreewiém Mr. Joffe was amended to extend the terrthisf agreement from March 31,
2008 to August 30, 2009. This amendment was unamsiy@pproved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

On March 27, 2008, the Company’s employment agreemigh Mr. Joffe was further amended to extendttren of this agreement from
August 30, 2009 to August 31, 2012. All other telans conditions of Mr. Joffe’'s employment remained¢hanged. This amendment was
unanimously approved by the Company’s Board of @es.

On December 31, 2008, the Company entered intoreemded and restated employment agreement withdife. Mr. Joffe’s previous
employment agreement was amended and restatedrilyitoeadd language that satisfies the requirementhe final treasury regulations
issued pursuant to Section 409A of the Code witpeet to certain of the payments that may be peavtd Mr. Joffe pursuant to the
employment agreement. The restated agreement dbo@screase the amounts payable to Mr. Joffe asyabonus, severance or other
compensation, nor does it extend the term of enmpéayt, but it does clarify that if the Company tarates the restated agreement without
cause, either directly or constructively, Mr. Joff#l be entitled to receive severance paymentd the later of (i) that date which is two years
after the termination date or (ii) the date uponchthe restated agreement would otherwise haveezkpAll other substantive terms and
conditions of Mr. Joffe’s employment remain unchaghgThe restated agreement was unanimously applyvttte Company’s Board of
Directors.
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During the year ended March 31, 2010, the Compaiy idoulihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capital, Inc. 880 for reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses. During the year ended March 319,28e Company paid Houlihan Lokey Howeard & ZuKipital, Inc. a $110,000 retainer
for services and reimbursement of other out-of-pbeixpenses. Scott J. Adelson, a member of the @oy'goBoard of Directors, is a Senior

Managing Director for Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zuk@apital, Inc.

21. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quartergricial data for the fiscal year ended March 31,@

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $32,690,00 $39,437,00 $36,482,00 $38,616,00
Cost of goods sol 25,519,00 28,621,00 25,605,00 26,153,00
Gross profil 7,171,00! 10,816,00 10,877,00 12,463,00
Total operating expens: 4,118,00I 5,522,00! 5,704,00! 7,676,001
Operating incom 3,053,00! 5,294,00! 5,173,00! 4,787,00!
Gain on acquisitiol — (1,331,001 — —
Interest expens 996,00( 974,00( 1,776,001 964,00(
Income tax expens 862,00( 2,216,001 1,252,001 952,00(
Net income $ 1,195,00! $ 3,435,00 $ 2,145,00! $ 2,871,00
Basic net income per she $ 0.1C $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.24
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.1C $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.24
The following summarizes selected quarterly finahdata for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009:
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $32,705,00 $36,437,00 $35,802,00 $29,922,00
Cost of goods sol 21,225,00 24,531,00 25,672,00 23,891,00
Gross profil 11,480,00 11,906,000 10,130,00 6,031,00!
Total operating expens 5,676,00! 6,897,001 9,621,00! 6,711,00!
Operating income (los 5,804,00! 5,009,00! 509,00( (680,000
Interest expens— net 818,00( 1,148,001 1,203,001 1,027,001
Income tax expense (benel 1,954,00! 1,541,001 (380,000 (526,000
Net income (loss $ 3,032,00i $ 2,320,001 $ (314,000  $(1,181,00i)
Basic net income (loss) per sh $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢ $ (0.09) $ (0.10)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 0.2F $ 0.1¢ $ (0.0 % (0.10)

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theo§yper share amounts for the quarters

may not agree with per share amounts for the yeaws elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Schedule 11— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance at Charge to Balance at
Years Endeded beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense written off period
201C Allowance for doubtful accoun $243,00( $898,00( $ — $1,141,00!
200¢ Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 18,00( $225,00( $ — $ 243,00(
200¢ Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 18,00( $124,00( $124,00( $ 18,00(
Accounts Receivable— Allowance for customer-payment discrepancies
Charge to
Balance at (recovery of) Balance at
Years Endeded beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense Processed period
201C Allowance for custome~payment discrepancit $681,00( $ 182,00( $310,00( $553,00(
200¢ Allowance for custome~payment discrepancit $492,00( $ 915,00( $726,00( $681,00(
200¢ Allowance for custom+payment discrepancit $823,00( $(294,00() $ 37,00( $492,00(
Inventory — Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Provision for
Balance at excess ant Balance at
Years Endeded beginning of obsolete Amounts end of
March 31, Description period inventory written off period
201C Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $2,181,00! $ 878,00( $579,00( $2,480,00!
200¢ Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $2,762,00! $ 36,00( $617,00( $2,181,00!
200¢ Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $2,093,00! $1,017,001 $348,00( $2,762,00!
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List of Subsidiaries
MVR Products Pte. Limited, a company organized uigke laws of Singapore
Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., a company organized under the laf\Malaysia
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a compamanized under the laws of Mexico

Motorcar Parts of Canada, Inc., a company organireldr the laws of Canada

Exhibit 21.1
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 No.’s 333-114383-103313, and 333-144883)
pertaining to the Long Term Incentive Plan, 199c&tOption Plan, and 2004 Non-Employee DirectocktOption Plan, respectively, of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. of our reports dalene 14, 2010, with respect to the consolidatexhtial statements and schedule of

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and the effectivanef internal control over financial reportingMbtorcar Parts of America, Inc. included in
this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endedrth 31, 2010.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, CA

June 14, 2010



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Selwyn Joffe, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KMuftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets) and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérésd | are responsible for establishing and maiimtg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahogéporting, or caused, such internal control diveamcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrgggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaei@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of registrard’Board of Directors (or persons performing theieaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiad@knesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 201 /s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, David Lee, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-Kviaftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officgrénd | are responsible for establishing and maiintg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahoeporting, or caused, such internal control divencial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaeti@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theivant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiadaknesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who haveniisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2010 /s/ David Lee
David Lee
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kevin Daly, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-Kviaftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officgrénd | are responsible for establishing and maiintg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahoeporting, or caused, such internal control divencial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaeti@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theivant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiadaknesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who haveniisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2010 /s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINAN CIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Motard®arts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForiK for the year ended March 31, 2010
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Sgiwoffe, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 25 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befiairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

Chief Executive Officer
June 14, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motard®arts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForiK for the year ended March 31, 2010
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Dihlzee, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01258 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihencial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Officer
June 14, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motardarts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on For@iK for the year ended March 31, 2010
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Kedaly, Chief Accounting Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01258 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihencial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Officer
June 14, 201

The foregoing certifications are being furidho the Securities and Exchange Commission aoptire accompanying report on Form 10-
K. A signed original of each of these statementsheen provided to Motorcar Parts of America, &mad will be retained by Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. and furnished to the Securities ardiange Commission or its staff upon request.



